Women's Intimates Key Performance Indicators

Version 02.06





About the Women's Intimates Key Performance Indicators

This THESIS Performance Assessment covers undergarments and related clothing items for adult women. This includes, but is not limited to, underwear, bras, lingerie, sleepwear, and pantyhose. It does not include swimwear.

The information you collect for these KPIs should cover your global production and not be specific to any region or buyer (e.g., retailer).

Remember to download the assessment documents to help you in completing the KPIs. Make sure to review the detailed guidance and resources for each KPI. Your work is saved automatically but not shared until you are ready.

Introduction

The Sustainability Insight System, THESIS, from The Sustainability Consortium (TSC) is a comprehensive and holistic solution for understanding environmental and social performance in consumer goods supply chains. These key performance indicators (KPIs) can be used to assess action, transparency, and continuous improvement on the material sustainability issues for brands, manufacturers, and producers.

TSC created this KPI set using its science-based, multi-stakeholder, and full life-cycle development process. TSC members and partners, including manufacturers, retailers, suppliers, service providers, NGOs, civil society organizations, governmental agencies, and academics, contributed valuable perspectives and expertise.

TSC is a global organization dedicated to improving the sustainability of consumer products that also offers a portfolio of services to help drive effective implementation. For more information please visit www.sustainabilityconsortium.org

Contents

Key performance indicators – Quick reference list	2
Key performance indicators – Guidance	6
Category Sustainability Profile	
Hotspots	38
Improvement opportunities	43
References	49





Key Performance Indicators

QUESTION	RESPONSE OPTION
 Cellulosic material sourcing – Chemical use What percentage of the viscose or cellulosic fiber (e.g., rayon, modal) in your product comes from viscose mills that are low risk for chemical use and emissions? 	 A. Not applicable. We do not use viscose or cellulosic fiber in our products or our mills are not listed in the CanopyStyle Hot Button Report. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We have begun mapping our viscose or cellulosic material supply chain to the mills. D. We are able to report the following: D1% of the viscose or cellulosic material in our product, by mass, comes from producers or mills that are associated with low risk for chemical use and emissions in the CanopyStyle Hot Button Report.
2. Cellulosic material sourcing – Deforestation What percentage of the viscose or cellulosic fiber (e.g., rayon, modal) in your products comes from viscose mills that are low risk for sourcing from ancient and endangered forests?	 A. Not applicable. We do not use viscose or cellulosic fiber in our products or our mills are not listed in the 2020 CanopyStyle Hot Button Report. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We have begun mapping our fabric supply chain to the viscose mills. D. We are able to report the following: D1% of the viscose or cellulosic fiber in our product, by mass, comes from viscose mills that are associated with low risk of sourcing from ancient & endangered forests and other controversial sources in the CanopyStyle Hot Button Report.
3. Plant-derived material sourcing What percentage of your plant-derived material supply was traced to the processing facility, covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing farm-level environmental impacts, and covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for farm-level social impacts?	 A. Not applicable. Our products do not contain any plant-derived materials. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We are able to report the following for our plant-derived material supply: C1% of our plant-derived material supply, by mass, was traced to the processing facility. C2% of our plant-derived material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing farm-level environmental impacts. C3% of our plant-derived material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for farm-level social impacts. C4% of our plant-derived material supply for which we are able to report in response options C1-3 is cotton.
4. Synthetic material sourcing What percentage of your synthetic material supply was traced to the production facility of origin, covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing facility environmental impacts, and covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for facility social impacts?	 A. Not applicable. Our products do not contain synthetic materials. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We are able to report the following for our synthetic material supply: C1% of our synthetic material supply, by mass, was traced to the production facility of origin. C2% of our synthetic material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing facility environmental impacts. C3% of our synthetic material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for facility social impacts. C4% of our synthetic material supply for which we are able to report in response options C1-3 is polyester.
5. Wool and down sourcing What percentage of your wool and down supply, by mass, was traced to the animal farm operation of origin and had certifications or verifiable, regularly conducted audits for animal welfare and environmental impacts?	 A. Not applicable. We do not use wool or down in any of our products. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We are able to report the following for our wool and down supply: C1% of our wool and down supply, by mass, was traced to the animal farm operation of origin. C2% of our wool and down supply, by mass, was covered by a current comprehensive certification for farm-level environmental impacts or by verifiable, regularly conducted audits for farm-level environmental impacts. C3% of our wool and down supply, by mass, was covered by a current comprehensive animal welfare certification or by verifiable, regularly conducted animal welfare audits.







6. Greenhouse gas emissions - Supply chain What percentage of textile fabric used in your final product, by mass purchased, was produced by suppliers that reported their annual Scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas emissions?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. The following percentage of fabric, by mass purchased, was produced by suppliers that reported Scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas emissions: B1%.
7. Wastewater generation - Supply Chain What percentage of textile fabric used in your final product, by mass purchased, was provided by suppliers' whose processing facilities have undergone supplier audits and meets or exceeds standards for wastewater quality for the five following metrics: biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), chemical oxygen demand (COD), total suspended solids (TSS), temperature, and pH?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. We are able to report the following for the textile fabric used in our products: B1% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met or exceeded the standard for COD. B2% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met or exceeded the standard for BOD. B3% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met or exceeded the standard for TSS. B4% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met the standard for pH. B5% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met the standard for temperature.
8. Water use - Supply chain What percentage of textile fabric used in your final product, by mass purchased, was produced by suppliers that reported their total annual water use?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. The following percentage of fabric, by mass purchased, was produced by suppliers that reported total water use: B1%.
9. Worker Health and Safety - Supply Chain How did your organization manage worker health and safety risks in the operations that produced the textile fabric supply used in your final product?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. We are able to report the following for our supply: B1% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that have performed a risk assessment to identify high-risk areas for health and safety. B2% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that train workers on health and safety procedures. B3% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that train workers on health and safety procedures. B3% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that implement a verifiable worker health and safety plan. B4% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that have a worker health and safety performance monitoring system in place. B5% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that were audited in the last three years on worker health and safety issues.
10. Air quality - Manufacturing What percentage of this product, by mass, comes from company-owned and contract manufacturing facilities performing final cut, sew, and dyeing operations that tracked and reported their annual air emissions?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. The following percentage of this product, by mass, comes from facilities that tracked and reported their annual air emissions: B1%.
11. Greenhouse gas emissions intensity - Manufacturing What was the greenhouse gas emissions intensity associated with final manufacture of your product?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. Our greenhouse gas emissions intensity was: B1 kg CO2e per metric tonne of product. B2% of our product, by mass produced, is represented by the number reported above.





12. Labor Rights - Manufacturing How did your organization manage labor rights risks in the company-owned and contract manufacturing facilities performing final cut, sew, and dyeing operations for your final product?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. We are able to report the following: B1% of our final product, by mass, was produced in facilities that were covered by an internal policy that has quantitative time-bound goals related to child labor, discrimination, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining. B2% of our final product, by mass, was produced in facilities that were reviewed by a risk assessment that identifies high-risk areas for labor rights abuses. B3% of our staff responsible for procurement activities have been trained on labor rights issues in the supply chain. B4% of our staff responsible for procurement activities have been evaluated via performance metrics on labor rights improvements in the supply chain. B5% of our final product, by mass, was produced in facilities that were low-risk, that were high-risk but corrective actions were taken, or that were audited on child labor, discrimination, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining in the last three years.
13. Microfiber release – Manufacturing How does your company address microfiber release during manufacturing?	 A. Not applicable, we only use plant-based fibers that biodegrade in water. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We are able to report the following: C1% of our synthetic textile supply, by mass, comes from manufacturers who monitor microfiber release. C2% of our synthetic textile supply, by mass, comes from manufacturers who utilize alternatives to wet processing. C3% of our synthetic textile supply, by mass, comes from manufacturers who have implemented practices and technologies to minimize microfiber release.
14. Worker Health and Safety - Manufacturing What was the injury and illness rate at company-owned or contract manufacturing facilities that produced your final product?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. Our injury and illness rate over our last twelve-month reporting period was: B1 B2% of our product, by mass produced, is represented by the number reported above.
15. Hazardous Chemical Discharge Management What is your organization's approach to managing chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List in your products?	 A. Not applicable, we have a policy to not use any chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List at any of our manufacturing facilities and we verify that this is true using analytical methods. B. We ensure legal and regulatory compliance. C. In addition to (B), we have programs with goals to prioritize and continuously reduce, eliminate, or restrict the use of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List in our products using various tools and protocols to make informed substitutions of the identified substances. D. In addition to (C), we publicly disclose our goals and progress concerning the reduction, elimination, or restriction of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List in our products. E. In addition to D, the following percentage of our manufacturing facilities have had a reduction in the use of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substance E.1%.
16. Product Design What percentage of your product, by unit volume, was designed to reduce manufacturing, use, and end-of-life impacts?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time, or we do not address these impacts. B. We are able to report the following about our products: B1% of our products, by unit volume, underwent a lifecycle assessment. B2% of our products, by unit volume, were designed to maximize material efficiency. B3% of our products, by unit volume, were designed to reduce laundering impacts. B4% of our products, by unit volume, were assessed for durability as part of the design process. B5% of our products, by unit volume, were designed for resource reutilization.







17. Recycled content

What is the ratio of the mass of recycled fiber to the total mass of fiber used in your final products?

A. We are unable to determine at this time.

B. We are able to report the following for our products:

B1.__ _ is the ratio of the mass of recycled fiber to the total mass of fiber used in our final products.

B2. _ % of our products, by mass, is represented by the number reported above.

 $\mbox{B3.}\hfill\mbox{B3.}\h$



THE SUSTAINABILITY CONSORTIUM ® | www.sustainabilityconsortium.org | ©2021 Arizona State University and University of Arkansas





Key Performance Indicators with Guidance

1. CELLULOSIC MATERIAL SOURCING – CHEMICAL USE	
Question What percentage of the viscose or cellulosic fiber (e.g., rayon, modal) in your product comes from viscose mills that are low risk for chemical use and emissions?	 Response Options A. Not applicable. We do not use viscose or cellulosic fiber in our products or our mills are not listed in the CanopyStyle Hot Button Report. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We have begun mapping our viscose or cellulosic material supply chain to the mills. D. We are able to report the following: D1% of the viscose or cellulosic material in our product, by mass, comes from producers or mills that are associated with low risk for chemical use and emissions in the CanopyStyle Hot Button Report.

Calculation & Scope	CanopyStyle's Hot Button Ranking and Report is the primary viscose and cellulosic fiber sourcing analysis tool for the fashion sector. Calculate D1 as the mass of your cellulosic material that was supplied by producers or mills included in the CanopyStyle Hot Button Report and ranked in the yellow to green bottle range for the Chemical Use and Emissions column, divided by your total mass of cellulosic material supply, then multiply by 100.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	2020 CanopyStyle Hot Button Report: The 2020 Hot Button Ranking of viscose producers is conducted using the consistent application of the tools and standards of the CanopyStyle initiative, including the CanopyStyle Audi https://hotbutton.canopyplanet.org/
	Button up to Protect Forests — Producer Progress Criteria: The audit standard and process were developed by Canopy, in partnership with NEPCon, and is supported by the CanopyStyle Leaders for Forest Conservation and brands, retailers and designers looking to implement their sourcing policies for man-made cellulosic textiles. https://hotbutton.canopyplanet.org/ranking-criteria-explained/
Hotspots Addressed	5. Chemical use - Textile Production







2. CELLULOSIC MATERIAL SOURCING - DEFORESTATION

Question What percentage of the viscose or cellulosic fiber (e.g., rayon, modal) in your products comes from viscose mills that are low risk for sourcing from ancient and endangered forests?	 Response Options A. Not applicable. We do not use viscose or cellulosic fiber in our products or our mills are not listed in the 2020 CanopyStyle Hot Button Report. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We have begun mapping our fabric supply chain to the viscose mills. D. We are able to report the following: D1% of the viscose or cellulosic fiber in our product, by mass, comes from viscose mills that are associated with low risk of sourcing from ancient & endangered forests and other controversial sources in the CanopyStyle Hot Button Report.
Guidance	

Juidance

Calculation & Scope	CanopyStyle's Hot Button Ranking and Report is the primary viscose and cellulosic fiber sourcing analysis tool for the fashion sector. Calculate D1 as the mass of your cellulosic material that was supplied by producers or mills included in the Canopy Hot Button Report and ranked in the yellow to green shirt range for the Hot Button Assessment column, divided by your total mass of cellulosic material supply, then multiply by 100. Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you
	respond to this question.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	2020 CanopyStyle Hot Button Report: The 2020 Hot Button Ranking of viscose producers is conducted using the consistent application of the tools and standards of the CanopyStyle initiative, including the CanopyStyle Audit. https://hotbutton.canopyplanet.org/
	Button up to Protect Forests — Producer Progress Criteria: The audit standard and process were developed by Canopy, in partnership with NEPCon, and is supported by the CanopyStyle Leaders for Forest Conservation and brands, retailers and designers looking to implement their sourcing policies for man-made cellulosic textiles. https://hotbutton.canopyplanet.org/ranking-criteria-explained/
	ForestMapper: This interactive tool is the only one of its kind to visually represent ancient and endangered forests at a global scale. ForestMapper includes information on numerous ecological values divided into four categories: forests, species, carbon and landscapes. https://canopyplanet.org/tools/forestmapper/
Definitions	Ancient and Endangered Forests: Intact forest landscape mosaics, naturally rare forest types, forest types that have been made rare due to human activity, and/or other forests that are ecologically critical for the protection of biological diversity. As a starting point to geographically locate ancient and endangered forests, maps of High Conservation Value Forests (HCVF), as defined by the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC), and of intact forest landscapes (IFL), can be used and paired with maps of other key ecological values like the habitat range of key endangered species and forests containing high concentrations of terrestrial carbon and High Carbon Stocks (HCS).
Hotspots Addressed	1. Cultivation impacts - Plant-derived materials







3. PLANT-DERIVED MATERIAL SOURCING

Impacts, and covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for farm-level social impacts? C1% of our plant-derived material supply, by mass, was traced to the processing facility. C2% of our plant-derived material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing farm-level environmental impacts. C3% of our plant-derived material supply, by mass, was		 traced to the processing facility. C2% of our plant-derived material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing farm-level environmental impacts. C3% of our plant-derived material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for farm-level social impacts. C4% of our plant-derived material supply for which we are
--	--	---

Guidance

Calculation & Scope	Plant derived materials include cotton, linen, and hemp. Regenerated or semisynthetic cellulosic materials such as rayon and viscose are considered in the Synthetic Material Sourcing KPI.
	Calculate C1 as the mass of your plant-derived material supply that was traced to the processing facility, divided by the total mass of your plant-derived material supply, then multiply by 100. The processing facility is where pre-spinning material processing takes place such as ginning for cotton, or scutching and heckling/hackling for linen.
	Calculate C2 as the mass of your plant-derived material supply that was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing farm-level environmental impacts, divided by the total mass of your plant-derived material supply, then multiply by 100. A comprehensive plan will address pesticide use, fertilizer use, water use, greenhouse gas emissions and all other impacts relevant for the farm. Supply that has been certified by Better Cotton Initiative and Global Organic Textile Standard can be included in the numerator for this calculation.
	Calculate C3 as the mass of your plant-derived material supply that was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for farm-level social impacts, divided by the total mass of your plant-derived material supply, then multiply by 100. A comprehensive plan will address worker health and safety, community health and safety, support for smallholders where present, and labor rights, including child labor, as well as all other impacts relevant for the farm. Supply that has been certified by Better Cotton Initiative, Fair Trade International, and Fair for Life can be included in the numerator for this calculation.
	Calculate C4 as the mass of your cotton material supply that was assessed and met criteria for C1, C2, and C3, divided by the total mass of your material supply, then multiply by 100. The percent entered cannot exceed 100%.

Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.







Certifications, Standards & Tools	Better Cotton Initiative: The Better Cotton Initiative offers a standard that addresses environmental and social issues present in the growing of cotton. https://bettercotton.org/
	Cotton USA: Cotton USA is the trademark of the nonprofit Cotton Council International (CCI) which works through quality, sustainability, transparent partnerships, and ethical standards to make US cotton the preferred fiber for the clothing, footwear, and textiles value chain. Through their sustainability value, they aim to make US cotton the most sustainably produced in the world. https://cottonusa.org/
	Fair for Life Certification Program: The Fair Life program provides certification for fair trade and responsible supply chains. The goal of Fair for Life is to ensure social and economic benefits to socioeconomically disadvantaged agricultural producers and workers and to ensure that smallholder producers receive a fair share. http://www.fairforlife.org/
	Fairtrade International Certification: Fairtrade International provides several standards (e.g. for smallholders and workers), and a certification through FLOCERT. Fairtrade aims to improve the livelihoods of smallholders and workers amongst others via fair trade relationships. https://www.fairtrade.net/about/certification
	Global Organic Textile Standard: This is an example of textile chemical use standards. http://www.global-standard.org/the-standard/general-description.html
	Recycled Claim Standard (RCS) and Global Recycled Standard (GRS): The Recycled Claim Standard and Global Recycled Standard have the goal to increase recycled materials in consumer products by developing voluntary standards for the certification of recycled input. These standards also cover chain of custody, environmental processing, and chemical restrictions. https://textileexchange.org/standards/recycled-claim-standard-global-recycled-standard/
	THESIS Help Center Video: Plant-derived material sourcing KPI: Short video tutorial on the Plant-derived material sourcing KPI. Use case-sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted. https://vimeo.com/533750670
Definitions	Farming operation: An area of land and its buildings, comprised of one or more locations managed together that is used for growing crops that are delivered for further processing or as ingredients to other final products. Verifiable: Having the ability to demonstrate, through a reputable assessor, the truth or accuracy of a claim.
Hotspots Addressed	1. Cultivation impacts - Plant-derived materials







4. SYNTHETIC MATERIAL SOURCING

What percentage of your synthetic material supply was traced to the production facility of origin, covered by a verifiable B.	 Ponse Options Not applicable. Our products do not contain synthetic materials. We are unable to determine at this time. We are able to report the following for our synthetic material supply: C1% of our synthetic material supply, by mass, was traced to the production facility of origin. C2% of our synthetic material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing facility environmental impacts. C3% of our synthetic material supply, by mass, was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for facility social impacts. C4% of our synthetic material supply for which we are able to report in response options C1-3 is polyester.
--	---

Calculation & Scope	This KPI covers synthetic (e.g., polyester, nylon) and semisynthetic (e.g., rayon, viscose, lyocell) materials.
	Calculate C1 as the mass of your synthetic material supply that was traced to the production facility of origin, divided by the total mass of your synthetic material supply, then multiply by 100. The production facility is where the chemical processes (e.g., synthesis, regeneration) to produce the fiber or material are carried out.
	Calculate C2 as the mass of your synthetic material supply that was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for managing facility environmental impacts, divided by the total mass of your synthetic material supply, then multiply by 100.
	Calculate C3 as the mass of your synthetic material supply that was covered by a verifiable comprehensive plan for facility social impacts, divided by the total mass of your synthetic material supply, then multiply by 100.
	Calculate C4 as the mass of your synthetic material supply that was assessed and met criteria for C1, C2, and C3 that is polyester divided by the total mass of your synthetic material supply, then multiply by 100.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
Definitions	Verifiable: Having the ability to demonstrate, through a reputable assessor, the truth or accuracy of a claim.
Hotspots Addressed	3. Production impacts - Synthetic materials







5. WOOL AND DOWN SOURCING

Question What percentage of your wool and down supply, by mass, was traced to the animal farm operation of origin and had certifications or verifiable, regularly conducted audits for animal welfare and environmental impacts?	 Response Options A. Not applicable. We do not use wool or down in any of our products. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We are able to report the following for our wool and down supply: C1% of our wool and down supply, by mass, was traced to the animal farm operation of origin. C2% of our wool and down supply, by mass, was covered by a current comprehensive certification for farm-level environmental impacts or by verifiable, regularly conducted audits for farm-level environmental impacts. C3% of our wool and down supply, by mass, was covered by a current comprehensive animal wolfare certification or by verifiable.
	current comprehensive animal welfare certification or by verifiable, regularly conducted animal welfare audits.

Calculation & Scope	Calculate B1 as the mass of your wool and down supply that was traced to the animal farm operation of origin, divided by the total mass of your wool and down supply, then multiply by 100.
	Calculate B2 as the mass of your wool and down supply that was covered by a current comprehensive certification for farm-level environmental impacts or by verifiable, regularly conducted audits for farm-level impacts, divided by the total mass of your wool and down supply, then multiply by 100. The certification or audits should address all material environmental impacts including, but not limited to, soil health and erosion, biodiversity and deforestation, fertilizer use, and pesticide use. Material certified to the Responsible Wool Standard may be included in the calculation of B2.
	Calculate B3 as the mass of your wool and down supply that came from animal farm operations that either maintain a current comprehensive animal welfare certification or verifiable, regularly conducted animal welfare audit, divided by the total mass of your wool and down supply, then multiply by 100.
	To be included in B3, verifiable, regularly conducted audits should be performed by a second party or third party. Government regulations or parties in the supply chain can initiate these audits. Regulations, audits, and certifications that align with the animal welfare standards as described in Section 7 of the World Organisation for Animal Health (OIE) Terrestrial Animal Health Code and are well-enforced by the implementation of auditing systems can be included in your calculation.
	Efforts should be taken to achieve minimization of pain, risk of injury, and transmission of diseases or parasites to animals; a physical environment in which the air quality, temperature, and humidity support good animal health; a structural and social environment that allows animals to rest comfortably, provides opportunities for physical and cognitive activity, and allows for the opportunity to perform all beneficial natural, individual, and social behaviors.
	Animals should have access to sufficient water and appropriate feed, so as to be free from hunger and thirst. The handling of animals should foster a positive relationship between humans and animals and should not cause injury, panic, lasting fear, or avoidable stress.
	Genetic selection should take into account the health and welfare of animals
	Material certified to the Responsible Wool Standard and Responsible Down Standard may be included in the calculation of B3.





Certifications, Standards & Tools	Responsible Down Standard: The Responsible Down Standard is a voluntary standard for the certification of down from ducks and geese. It addresses issues of animal welfare at the farm, transport, and slaughter stages. http://responsibledown.org/for-business/certification/ Responsible Wool Standard: The Responsible Wool Standard is a voluntary standard for the certification of wool from sheep. It addressees issues of animal welfare, land management, and traceability. https://textileexchange.org/standards/responsible-wool/
Definitions	Animal farm operations: An area of land and its buildings, comprised of one or more locations managed together, that is used for rearing animals. This includes the growing of crops for animal feed on this land. Animal welfare: Animal welfare refers to the well-being of an animal and how an animal is coping with the conditions in which it lives. A good state of welfare varies substantially between different contexts, but in general an animal is in a good state of welfare if it is healthy, comfortable, well-nourished, safe, able to express innate behavior, and not suffering from pain, fear, and distress. Ensuring animal welfare is a human responsibility that requires treatments such as good housing, good care, good feed, humane handling and humane slaughter/killing. The treatments that an animal receives is covered by other terms such as animal care, animal husbandry, and humane management (adapted from The World Organisation for Animal Health (OIE)).
Hotspots Addressed	2. Production impacts - Wool and down





6. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS - SUPPLY CHAIN

Question

What percentage of textile fabric used in your final product, by mass purchased, was produced by suppliers that reported their annual Scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas emissions?

Response Options

- A. We are unable to determine at this time.
- B. The following percentage of fabric, by mass purchased, was produced by suppliers that reported Scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas emissions:
 B1. %.

Guidance

Calculation & Scope	Scope 1 and 2 emissions are defined by the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Standard (2015).
	Calculate B1 as the mass purchased from fabric suppliers that reported emissions, divided by total mass purchased from all fabric suppliers, then multiply by 100.
	Reporting can occur through public disclosure or private disclosure from the supplier to your organization directly or through another party.
	Perform this calculation using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
	If suppliers completed the CDP Climate Change 2020 Questionnaire, refer to C6.1 and C6.3 to determine if they report emissions.
	Suppliers who have entered and communicated information required by the Higg Index Facility Environmental Module 3.0 (Higg FEM) "Energy Use & GHG - Level 1" for their facilities may be used to answer this KPI.
	If using Field to Market's Fieldprint Platform to determine greenhouse gas emissions associated with cotton production, include energy use for field operations and activities through the first point of sale. This may include on-farm drying and any transport of the crop prior to sale.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	Energy Efficiency Assessment and Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Tool for the Textile Industry (EAGER Textile): This tool was developed by the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory to aid in evaluating the impacts of introducing energy efficiency measures into a textile facility. According to the China Energy Group, "the EAGER tool will calculate the typical energy savings (electricity, fuel, final, and primary energy), CO2 emissions reduction, cost, and simple payback period[the tool] is designed to work for textile facilities that have one or more of the following processes: spinning, weaving/knitting, dyeing, printing, finishing, and man-made fiber production." https://china.lbl.gov/eager-textile
	Field to Market's Continuous Improvement Accelerator: Harnessing the power of collaboration across the agricultural value chain and locally-led conservation solutions, Field to Market's Continuous Improvement Accelerator provides a process-based standard for delivering sustainable outcomes for agriculture, people and the planet. The hallmark of the Accelerator's approach lies in a process-based approach to advancing continuous improvement, which is grounded in a foundation that delivers solutions to global sustainable development priorities while also addressing local natural resource concerns. These projects utilize the power of voluntary, and often market-driven, solutions to incentivize improved environmental outcomes and enhance farmer livelihoods. By following a standardized and validated approach, these project pathways can leverage the collective action of the value chain to support resilient ecosystems and enhance farmer livelihoods. The Accelerator currently covers alfalfa, barley, corn, cotton, peanuts, potato, rice, sorghum, soy, sugar beet, and wheat produced in the U.S. and Canada. https://fieldtomarket.org/our-programs/
	Greenhouse Gas Protocol: Calculation Tools: This site provides a list of sector toolsets developed by GHG Protocol, third-party databases, and other tools based on the GHG Protocol standards that can be used to calculate greenhouse gas inventories for use in emissions calculations. https://ghgprotocol.org/calculation-tools
	SAC Higg Index: The Sustainable Apparel Coalition has developed indicator-based assessment tools called the

SAC Higg Index: The Sustainable Apparel Coalition has developed indicator-based assessment tools called the Higg Index, which evaluates the sustainable practices associated with production of apparel and footwear.







	https://apparelcoalition.org/the-higg-index/
	THESIS Help Center Video: Greenhouse Gas Emissions - Supply Chain KPI: Short video tutorial on the Greenhouse Gas Emissions - Supply Chain KPI. Use case-sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted. https://vimeo.com/465914322
Background Information	CDP Climate Change Questionnaire: The CDP Climate Change Questionnaire provides questions that assess a company's greenhouse gas emissions, goals, and management. The report provided by CDP provides the overview of the results from companies responding to the request. https://www.cdp.net/en/guidance/guidance-for-companies
	Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol Corporate Standard: The Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol provides guidance and is a useful resource published by the World Resources Institute with the World Business Council for Sustainable Development as a guide for monitoring and accounting for greenhouse gas emissions. https://ghgprotocol.org/corporate-standard
	GRI G4 Sustainability Reporting Guidelines: The GRI G4 Sustainability Reporting Guidelines provide a standard set of metrics for companies to report on material environmental, social, and economic impacts, actions, and outcomes. https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/
Definitions	Greenhouse gas: Gases that contribute to the greenhouse effect by absorbing infrared radiation in the atmosphere, e.g., carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, ozone, and chlorofluorocarbons.
Hotspots Addressed	6. Energy consumption - Yarn spinning7. Energy consumption - Wet processing





7. WASTEWATER GENERATION - SUPPLY CHAIN

Question

What percentage of textile fabric used in your final product, by mass purchased, was provided by suppliers' whose processing facilities have undergone supplier audits and meets or exceeds standards for wastewater quality for the five following metrics: biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), chemical oxygen demand (COD), total suspended solids (TSS), temperature, and pH?

Response Options

- A. We are unable to determine at this time.
- B. We are able to report the following for the textile fabric used in our products:

B1._____% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met or exceeded the standard for COD.

B2.____% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met or exceeded the standard for BOD.

B3._____% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met or exceeded the standard for TSS.

B4.____% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met the standard for pH.

B5._____% of our textile fabric was produced in facilities that met the standard for temperature.

Calculation & Scope	Calculate B1 as the mass of textile fabric from wet processing facilities that have undergone supplier audits and met or exceeded the standard for COD, divided by the total textile fabric from all wet processing facilities, then multiply by 100.
	Calculate B2 as the mass of textile fabric from wet processing facilities that have undergone supplier audits and met or exceeded the standard for BOD, divided by the total textile fabric from all wet processing facilities, then multiply by 100.
	Calculate B3 as the mass of textile fabric from wet processing facilities that have undergone supplier audits and met or exceeded the standard for TSS, divided by the total textile fabric from all wet processing facilities, then multiply by 100.
	Calculate B4 as the mass of textile fabric from wet processing facilities that have undergone supplier audits and met the standard for pH, divided by the total textile fabric from all wet processing facilities, then multiply by 100.
	Calculate B5 as the mass of textile fabric from wet processing facilities that have undergone supplier audits and met the standard for temperature, divided by the total textile fabric from all wet processing facilities, then multiply by 100.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
	Audits should include verification that discharged wastewater is meeting the standards set forth by the American Apparel & Footwear Association Global Textile Effluent Guidelines for 95% of the sampling period:
	- Measurements for BOD and TSS should be below or equal to 30 ppm.
	- Measurements for COD should be below or equal to 100 ppm.
	- Measurements for temperature should be below or equal to 37 degrees Celsius.
	- Measurements for pH should be between 6.0 - 9.0.
	Testing should follow a rigorous and internationally accepted methodology and frequency. Local or corporate standards may be stricter. The water quality metrics ideally approach ambient conditions.
	Suppliers who have entered and communicated information required by the Higg Index Facility Environmental Module 3.0 (Higg FEM) "Wastewater - Level 2, Question 7" may be used in responding to B1-B5 if the chosen wastewater standard meets or exceeds the values listed above, or if the values of the parameters listed in the detection table meet or exceed the values listed above. The information reported to the FEM is at the facility level; if your products are produced in multiple facilities you may aggregate the data to represent the entirety of final product produced.







Certifications, Standards & Tools	American Apparel & Footwear Association (AAFA) - Restricted Substance List: The AAFA provides guidelines for restricted chemicals and substances. https://www.aafaglobal.org/AAFA/Solutions_Pages/Restricted_Substance_List
	AWS International Water Stewardship Standard: The International Water Stewardship Standard is a globally- applicable framework that helps water users understand their water use and impacts. Developed by the Alliance for Water Stewardship, the standard addresses 1) sustainable water balance, 2) good water quality, 3) healthy important water-related areas, and 4) good water governance. https://a4ws.org/the-aws-standard-2-0/
	BHive: The BHive enables the creation and management of chemical inventories, identifies chemical products that meet sustainability credentials. The BHive enhances supply chain transparency as factories, brands, and retailers can view and compare the safety of chemical products. https://www.thebhive.net/
	Detox to Zero by OEKO-TEX: This analysis and assessment tool creates transparency and provides textile and leather producers the ability to control the use of hazardous substances. The tool focuses on continuous improvement and gradual reduction of harmful substances in production processes. https://www.oeko-tex.com/en/our-standards/detox-to-zero-by-oeko-tex
	SAC Higg Index: The Sustainable Apparel Coalition has developed indicator-based assessment tools called the Higg Index, which evaluates the sustainable practices associated with production of apparel and footwear. https://apparelcoalition.org/the-higg-index/
	Sustainable Textile Solutions (STS): Sustainable Textile Solutions programs support brands, retailers, and industry partners in their efforts to achieve compliance to environmental, health, and safety standards. https://sustexsolutions.com/
	THESIS Help Center Video: Wastewater generation - Supply Chain KPI: Short video tutorial on the Wastewater generation - Supply Chain KPI. Use case-sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted. https://vimeo.com/448595442
Background Information	Roadmap to Zero by ZDHC (Zero Discharge of Hazardous Chemicals): This plan is intended to reduce and eliminate the discharge of hazardous chemicals. https://www.roadmaptozero.com/
	Textile Effluent Treatment Technology: The Journal of Cotton Science has produced a document addressing the treatment of textile effluent and specific wastewater management methods. http://www.cotton.org/journal/2007-11/3/upload/jcs11-141.pdf
	U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Effluent Limitation Guidelines: This source provides current wastewater discharge guidelines and provides resources for reducing environmental impacts from wastewater discharge. https://www.epa.gov/eg
	Wastewater 101 Toolbox: A free online resource for the textile industry to learn, act, and share experiences related to the treatment of wastewater. https://wastewater.sustainabilityconsortium.org/





Definitions	Biological oxygen demand (BOD): An indicator for the amount of oxygen required/consumed for the microbiological decomposition (oxidation) of organic material in water bodies.
	Chemical oxygen demand (COD): An indicator for the amount of oxygen required to oxidize an organic compound to carbon dioxide, ammonia, and water. The measurement is a proxy for the amount of organic compounds in water. Measuring COD in wastewater provides an estimated level of organic pollutants. The standard for measurement can be referenced in ISO 6060.
	pH: A measure of a substance's acidity or basicity. The measurement is based upon the molar concentration of hydrogen (H) ions in an aqueous solution of the substance. Pure water is at a neutral pH of 7. For wastewater quality testing, measuring pH allows for benchmarking pH levels to ambient conditions existing naturally in the surrounding environment.
	Total suspended solids (TSS): A water quality measurement that reflects the amount of particulates in a sample. The dry weight of residue in a filter is used to calculate units in milligrams per liter (mg/L).
	Water use: Water use is defined as total withdrawals from municipal and private water providers, surface water, groundwater, or wells.
Hotspots Addressed	5. Chemical use - Textile Production
	9. Wastewater generation - Wet processing







8. WATER USE - SUPPLY CHAIN

Question

What percentage of textile fabric used in your final product, by mass purchased, was produced by suppliers that reported their total annual water use?

Response Options

- A. We are unable to determine at this time.
- B. The following percentage of fabric, by mass purchased, was produced by suppliers that reported total water use:

B1. __%.

Calculation & Scope	Calculate B1 as the mass purchased from fabric suppliers that reported their annual water use, divided by the total mass purchased from all fabric suppliers, then multiply by 100.
	Perform this calculation using purchasing data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
	Water use is defined as the total amount of withdrawals from municipal and private water providers, surface water, groundwater, or wells. Supplier water use reporting can occur through public disclosure or private disclosure from the supplier to your organization directly or through another party.
	If suppliers completed the CDP Water Security 2020 Questionnaire, refer to W1.2b, W1.2h, and W5.1a to determine if they report water use.
	Suppliers who have entered and communicated the information required by the Higg Facility Environmental Module 3.0 (Higg FEM) "Water Use - Level 1" may be included in percentage calculated for response option B1.
	If using Field to Market's Fieldprint Platform to determine water use during cotton production, report data from the "Irrigated yield" field of the summary report, not the "Yield difference due to irrigation" field.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	Field to Market's Continuous Improvement Accelerator: Harnessing the power of collaboration across the agricultural value chain and locally-led conservation solutions, Field to Market's Continuous Improvement Accelerator provides a process-based standard for delivering sustainable outcomes for agriculture, people and the planet. The hallmark of the Accelerator's approach lies in a process-based approach to advancing continuous improvement, which is grounded in a foundation that delivers solutions to global sustainable development priorities while also addressing local natural resource concerns. These projects utilize the power of voluntary, and often market-driven, solutions to incentivize improved environmental outcomes and enhance farmer livelihoods. By following a standardized and validated approach, these project pathways can leverage the collective action of the value chain to support resilient ecosystems and enhance farmer livelihoods. The Accelerator currently covers alfalfa, barley, corn, cotton, peanuts, potato, rice, sorghum, soy, sugar beet, and wheat produced in the U.S. and Canada. https://fieldtomarket.org/our-programs/
Background Information	CDP Water Information Request: The CDP Water Information Request provides questions that assess a company's water use, goals, and management. The report provided by CDP provides the overview of the results from companies responding to the request. CDP can be contacted to respond to the Water Information Request. https://www.cdp.net/en/guidance/guidance-for-companies
	GRI G4 Sustainability Reporting Guidelines: The GRI G4 Sustainability Reporting Guidelines provide a standard set of metrics for companies to report on material environmental, social, and economic impacts, actions, and outcomes. https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/





Definitions

Water use: Water use is defined as total withdrawals from municipal and private water providers, surface water, groundwater, or wells.

Hotspots Addressed

8. Water use - Wet processing







9. WORKER HEALTH AND SAFETY - SUPPLY CHAIN

Question

How did your organization manage worker health and safety risks in the operations that produced the textile fabric supply used in your final product?

Response Options

- **A.** We are unable to determine at this time.
- B. We are able to report the following for our supply:

B1._____% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that have performed a risk assessment to identify high-risk areas for health and safety.

B2.____% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that train workers on health and safety procedures.

B3._____% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that implement a verifiable worker health and safety plan.

B4._____% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that have a worker health and safety performance monitoring system in place.

B5._____% of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, by mass, was produced in operations that were audited in the last three years on worker health and safety issues.

Guidance

Calculation & Scope

To be included in B1-B5, risk assessments, training programs, safety plans, performance monitoring systems, and audits must be verifiable and address health and safety issues such as worker injury and worker exposure to harmful elements. The assessments and audits must be conducted by second or third parties. The risk assessment must be conducted once per year while the audit must have been conducted at least once every three years, both using a standard based on internationally-recognized principles such as International Labour Organization Occupational Safety and Health Conventions (e.g., No. 155). The standards and websites listed in Background Information below may be helpful for conducting your risk assessment(s) and for understanding appropriate corrective actions, which can inform your responses. See the Certifications, Standards & Tools for examples of initiatives that meet these requirements.

Calculate B1 as the mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product that came from operations that have performed a risk assessment to identify high risk areas for health and safety, divided by the total mass of the textile fabric supply used in our final product, then multiply by 100.

To determine if an operation is high risk for health and safety, you may utilize a country risk analysis tool. The tool should measure the strength of a country's ability to govern and enforce laws, regulations, and internationally recognized principles. The country risk assessment may be a first party systematic review assessment, or external risk analyses tools may be utilized. It must be conducted at least once per year. The country risk assessment can be complemented with risks associated with specific activities, regions, and suppliers.

Calculate B2 as the mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product that came from operations that train workers on health and safety procedures, divided by the total mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product, then multiply by 100. To be included in B2, the training on health and safety procedures must be available in the language of the employee, including migratory and seasonal workers, and must be renewed as appropriate to maintain competency and implementation of good practices for workers on health and safety procedures and to prevent training exhaustion. Additional worker training may be required to perform job duties. On-site audits, where necessary, should be conducted by second or third parties and must be conducted at least once every three years using a standard based on internationally-recognized principles.

Calculate B3 as the mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product that came from operations that implement a verifiable worker health and safety plan, divided by the total mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product, then multiply by 100. To be included in B3, a worker health and safety plan must be verifiable and must be available in the language of the employee, including migratory and seasonal workers, and be prominently displayed in the workplace where employees normally report. The plan should include best practices specific to ergonomics; repetitive motions; chemical and particulate exposure; appropriate use of personal







	protective equipment (PPE); and proper use of tools, machinery. On-site audits, where necessary, should be conducted by second or third parties and must be conducted at least once every three years using a standard based on internationally-recognized principles.
	Calculate B4 as the mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product, that came from operations that have a worker health and safety performance monitoring system in place, divided by the total mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product, then multiply by 100. To be included in B4, a worker health and safety performance monitoring system should include metrics on issues including, but not limited to, incidence of worker injuries and prevalence of diseases. On-site audits, where necessary, should be conducted by second or third parties and must be conducted at least once every three years using a standard based on internationally-recognized principles.
	Calculate B5 as the mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product, that came from operations that were audited in the last three years on worker health and safety issues, divided by the total mass of the textile fabric supply used in your final product, then multiply by 100. Audits should be conducted by second or third parties at least once every three years, or more often depending on the requirements of the standard organization. See the Certifications, Standards & Tools for more information. Government regulations or parties in the supply chain may initiate these audits.
	To be included in B5, the audits must be verifiable and address preventive measures, freely provided personal protective equipment, identification of worker health and safety hazards and effects on the exposed people, statistics and reasons behind injuries, design of work area, processes, installations, machinery/work equipment, operating processes and work organization, as outlined by internationally-recognized labor principles. Examples include, but are not limited to, principles outlined by the United Nations Global Compact, the International Labour Organization Standards on Occupational Health and Safety.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question. Audits must have been conducted in the 36 months prior to the end of the 12-month period.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	Amfori Country Risk Classification: This list classifies countries' risk of social injustice in an effort to assist companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations. http://duediligence.amfori.org/CountryRiskClassification
	companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations.
	 companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations. http://duediligence.amfori.org/CountryRiskClassification Fairtrade International Certification: Fairtrade International provides several standards (e.g. for smallholders and workers), and a certification through FLOCERT. Fairtrade aims to improve the livelihoods of smallholders and workers amongst others via fair trade relationships.
	 companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations. http://duediligence.amfori.org/CountryRiskClassification Fairtrade International Certification: Fairtrade International provides several standards (e.g. for smallholders and workers), and a certification through FLOCERT. Fairtrade aims to improve the livelihoods of smallholders and workers amongst others via fair trade relationships. https://www.fairtrade.net/about/certification SA8000® Standard: Social Accountability International (SAI) is a global non-governmental organization that aims to advance human rights at work via the SA8000® Standard. SA 8000 measures social performance in eight areas that are relevant for workplaces in factories and organizations worldwide.







Definitions	First party systematic risk assessment: A first party systematic risk assessment is conducted by the organization itself for management review and other internal purposes and may form the basis for an organization's declaration of conformity.
	Risk assessment: A systematic process to evaluate potential risks within an operation, system, or supply chain. It can include an on-site audit by a second party or third party or a country risk classification analysis that judges the site risk due to prevailing conditions, controls, or other mitigating factors.
	Second-party audit: An audit conducted by a party having an interest in the organization, such as customers, or by another entity on their behalf.
	Third-party audit: An audit conducted by external, independent auditing organizations, such as those providing certification of conformity to a standard.
	Verifiable: Having the ability to demonstrate, through a reputable assessor, the truth or accuracy of a claim.
	Worker exposure to harmful elements: Contact with potentially harmful chemical, physical, or biological elements that occurs as a result of one's job-related activities. Examples include chronic interaction with chemicals, dusts, radiation, environmental elements, allergens, noise, and vibrations.
	Worker health and safety: Worker health and safety consists of worker injury and worker exposure to harmful elements. Please see the corresponding terms.
	Worker injury: Physical damage to an individual due to a single act that causes immediate damage or repetitive acts that cause damage over time. Examples of causes of injury include repetitive motions, non-ergonomic motions, damage from use of tools and machinery, falls, and burns.
Hotspots Addressed	5. Chemical use - Textile Production





10. AIR QUALITY - MANUFACTURING

Question

What percentage of this product, by mass, comes from company-owned and contract manufacturing facilities performing final cut, sew, and dyeing operations that tracked and reported their annual air emissions?

Response Options

- A. We are unable to determine at this time.
- B. The following percentage of this product, by mass, comes from facilities that tracked and reported their annual air emissions:

B1. _%.

Calculation & Scope	Calculate B1 as the mass of products that were produced in final cut, sew, and dyeing facilities that tracked and reported annual air emissions, divided by the total mass of products produced by all final cut, sew, and dyeing facilities, then multiply by 100. Include all company-owned or contract manufacturing facilities that performed final cut, sew, and dyeing operations. If the final cut, sew, and dyeing steps are performed in different facilities, then each must report their air emissions in order to be included in your calculation. Facilities included in this calculation must track all air emissions required by locally applicable regulations, as well as those emissions for which there is scientific evidence of serious effects to human health or the environment. Air emissions may include, but are not limited to, nitrogen and sulphur oxides from boilers, hydrocarbons from drying ovens, carbon monoxide from sizing, aniline vapors, and ammonia from printing/dyeing, and VOCs and ozone from textile finishing, and may be emitted as dust, oil mists, acid vapors, odors, and boiler exhausts. Testing of emissions must occur according to a rigorous and internationally accepted testing methodology.
	Perform this calculation using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
	Information entered into the Higg Index Facility Environment Module 3.0 (Higg FEM) "Air Emissions - Level 1, Questions 1-3" may be used in responding to B1. The information reported to the FEM is at the facility level; if your products are produced in multiple facilities you may aggregate the data to represent the entirety of final product produced.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	Safer Choice (EPA): In order to identify scientific evidence of probable serious effects to human health and the environment, organizations should reference relevant criteria in the U.S. EPA Safer Choice Program. https://www.epa.gov/saferchoice
	THESIS Help Center Video: Air quality - Manufacturing KPI: Short video tutorial on the Air quality - Manufacturing KPI. Use case-sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted. https://vimeo.com/533750750
Hotspots Addressed	4. Air quality - Manufacturing
	5. Chemical use - Textile Production





11. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS INTENSITY - MANUFACTURING

Question

What was the greenhouse gas emissions intensity associated with final manufacture of your product?

Response Options

- A. We are unable to determine at this time.
- B. Our greenhouse gas emissions intensity was:
 - ____ kg CO2e per metric tonne of product. B1.____

B2.____% of our product, by mass produced, is represented by the number reported above.

Calculation & Scope	Included in the scope of this question are fuels combusted and electricity used in facilities that perform final manufacturing activities, as well as trace gases released during manufacture. This may include some or all of your organization's corporate scope 1 and 2 emissions, as well as scope 1 and 2 emissions from any final manufacturing facilities not within your organization's financial or operational control (e.g., contract manufacturers). Excluded from the scope of this question are GHG allowances, offsets, and credits.
	You may calculate B1 using product-specific data or estimate intensity via facility data that is not product specific. If using product-specific data, calculate B1 as the average of each product's greenhouse gas emissions intensity, weighted by the total mass produced of each product.
	If using facility data, calculate B1 as the average of each final manufacturing facility's greenhouse gas emissions intensity, weighted by the total mass of final product produced/revenue from final product produced/number of units produced. If the manufacturing facilities produce more than one category of product, only weight using the total mass of product category in question.
	Calculate B2 as the mass of final products for which you are able to obtain data, divided by total mass of final products produced, then multiply by 100. For each final manufacturing facility, follow the instructions in the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Standard (2015) to calculate scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas emissions generated from electricity purchased or produced, fuels combusted, and trace gases released, and then add them together. Worksheets are available on the GHG Protocol web site to facilitate these calculations.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
	The data required for the CDP Climate Change 2020 Questionnaire combined with production data can be used to calculate your response (refer to C7.3b and C7.6b). The data required for "Disclosure 302-1 Energy consumption within the organization" in GRI 302: Energy 2016 or "Disclosure 305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions" and "Disclosure 305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions" in GRI 305: Emissions 2016 can also be used to calculate your response.
	Information entered into the Higg Index Facility Environmental Module 3.0 (Higg FEM) "Energy Use & GHG - Level 1" may be used to answer this KPI.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	CDP Climate Change Questionnaire: The CDP Climate Change Questionnaire provides questions that assess a company's greenhouse gas emissions, goals, and management. The report provided by CDP provides the overview of the results from companies responding to the request. https://www.cdp.net/en/guidance/guidance-for-companies
	Energy Efficiency Assessment and Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Tool for the Textile Industry (EAGER Textile): This tool was developed by the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory to aid in evaluating the impacts of introducing energy efficiency measures into a textile facility. According to the China Energy Group, "the EAGER tool will calculate the typical energy savings (electricity, fuel, final, and primary energy), CO2 emissions reduction, cost, and simple payback period[the tool] is designed to work for textile facilities that have one or more of the following processes: spinning, weaving/knitting, dyeing, printing, finishing, and man-made fiber production." https://china.lbl.gov/eager-textile







	Greenhouse Gas Protocol: Calculation Tools: This site provides a list of sector toolsets developed by GHG Protocol, third-party databases, and other tools based on the GHG Protocol standards that can be used to calculate greenhouse gas inventories for use in emissions calculations. https://ghgprotocol.org/calculation-tools
	GRI G4 Sustainability Reporting Guidelines: The GRI G4 Sustainability Reporting Guidelines provide a standard set of metrics for companies to report on material environmental, social, and economic impacts, actions, and outcomes. https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/
	SAC Higg Index: The Sustainable Apparel Coalition has developed indicator-based assessment tools called the Higg Index, which evaluates the sustainable practices associated with production of apparel and footwear. https://apparelcoalition.org/the-higg-index/
Background Information	Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol Corporate Standard: The Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol provides guidance and is a useful resource published by the World Resources Institute with the World Business Council for Sustainable Development as a guide for monitoring and accounting for greenhouse gas emissions. https://ghgprotocol.org/corporate-standard
Background Information Definitions	guidance and is a useful resource published by the World Resources Institute with the World Business Council for Sustainable Development as a guide for monitoring and accounting for greenhouse gas emissions.





12. LABOR RIGHTS - MANUFACTURING

Question	Response Options
How did your organization manage labor rights risks in the	A. We are unable to determine at this time.
company-owned and contract manufacturing facilities performing final cut, sew, and dyeing operations for your final product?	B. We are able to report the following:
	B1% of our final product, by mass, was produced in facilities that were covered by an internal policy that has quantitative time-bound goals related to child labor, discrimination, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining.
	B2% of our final product, by mass, was produced in facilities that were reviewed by a risk assessment that identifies high-risk areas for labor rights abuses.
	B3% of our staff responsible for procurement activities have been trained on labor rights issues in the supply chain.
	B4% of our staff responsible for procurement activities have been evaluated via performance metrics on labor rights improvements in the supply chain.
	B5% of our final product, by mass, was produced in facilities that were low-risk, that were high-risk but corrective actions were taken, or that were audited on child labor, discrimination, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining in the last three years.

Guidance

Calculation & Scope

The scope of this KPI includes company owned and contract manufacturing facilities performing final cut, sew, and dyeing operations for final product.

Calculate B1 as the mass of your final product that is covered by an internal policy that has quantitative timebound goals related to child labor, discrimination, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining, divided by the total mass of your final product, then multiply by 100. Where freedom of association and collective bargaining are restricted by law, employers can use other forms of non-union employee representation and relations to respect this aspect of workers' rights.

Calculate B2 as the mass of your final product that has been reviewed by a risk assessment which identifies highrisk areas for labor rights abuses, divided by the total mass of your final product, then multiply by 100.

To be included in B2, a risk assessment must have been conducted by second or third parties and must have been conducted at least once every three years using a standard based on internationally-recognized principles. The risk assessments and standard must be verifiable and must address labor rights abuses such as discrimination on grounds of gender, age, ethnicity or disability, physical violence, sexual harassment and abuse, child labor, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining or any other range of behaviors and practices as outlined by internationally-recognized labor standards. The standards and websites listed in Background Information below may be helpful for conducting your risk assessment(s) and for understanding appropriate corrective actions which can inform your responses.

In addition, to determine if an operation is in a high-risk area for labor rights abuses, you may utilize a country risk analysis tool. The tool should measure the strength of a country's ability to govern and enforce laws, regulations, and internationally-recognized principles. The country risk assessment may be a first party systematic risk assessment, or external risk analyses tools may be utilized. The AMFORI Countries' Risk Classification tool listed below may be used to inform your response. The country risk assessment can be complemented with risks associated with specific activities, regions, and suppliers.

Calculate B3 as the number of staff responsible for procurement activities that have been trained on labor rights issues in the supply chain, divided by the total number of staff responsible for procurement activities, then multiply by 100. Include both full-time and contracted employees. The training must be verifiable. Staff training should cover child labor, discrimination, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining, as outlined by internationally-recognized labor principles. Staff training should be renewed as appropriate to maintain







	competency and implementation of good practices for labor rights issues and to prevent training exhaustion. Additional staff training may be required to perform job duties.
	Calculate B4 as the number staff responsible for procurement activities that have been evaluated via performance metrics on labor rights improvements in the supply chain, divided by the total staff responsible for procurement activities, then multiply by 100. Evaluation on labor rights should include, child labor, discrimination, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining, as outlined by internationally-recognized labor principles. Examples of improvements include decreased incidence of child labor, forced labor, or discrimination, or an Increased worker participation in collective bargaining.
	Calculate B5 as the mass of your final product that was produced in operations that were low risk, that were high risk but corrective actions were taken, or that were audited on child labor, discrimination, forced labor, and freedom of association and collective bargaining in the last three years, divided by the total mass of your final product, then multiply by 100. To be included in B5, audits must be verifiable and address child labor, discrimination, forced labor principles. Examples include, but are not limited to, principles outlined by the United Nations Global Compact, the International Labour Organization Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work. Where freedom of association and relations to respect this aspect of workers' rights. Audits should be conducted by second or third parties at least once every three years, or more often depending on the requirements of the standard organization See the Certifications, Standards & Tools for more information. Government regulations or parties in the supply chain may initiate these audits.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question. Audits must have been conducted in the 36 months prior to the end of the 12-month period.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	Amfori Country Risk Classification: This list classifies countries' risk of social injustice in an effort to assist companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations. http://duediligence.amfori.org/CountryRiskClassification
	companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations.
	 companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations. http://duediligence.amfori.org/CountryRiskClassification Fairtrade International Certification: Fairtrade International provides several standards (e.g. for smallholders and workers), and a certification through FLOCERT. Fairtrade aims to improve the livelihoods of smallholders and workers amongst others via fair trade relationships.
	 companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations. http://duediligence.amfori.org/CountryRiskClassification Fairtrade International Certification: Fairtrade International provides several standards (e.g. for smallholders and workers), and a certification through FLOCERT. Fairtrade aims to improve the livelihoods of smallholders and workers amongst others via fair trade relationships. https://www.fairtrade.net/about/certification SA8000® Standard: Social Accountability International (SAI) is a global non-governmental organization that aims to advance human rights at work via the SA8000® Standard. SA 8000 measures social performance in eight areas that are relevant for workplaces in factories and organizations worldwide.
	 companies in determining high and low risk for their sourcing and operations. http://duediligence.amfori.org/CountryRiskClassification Fairtrade International Certification: Fairtrade International provides several standards (e.g. for smallholders and workers), and a certification through FLOCERT. Fairtrade aims to improve the livelihoods of smallholders and workers amongst others via fair trade relationships. https://www.fairtrade.net/about/certification SA8000® Standard: Social Accountability International (SAI) is a global non-governmental organization that aims to advance human rights at work via the SA8000® Standard. SA 8000 measures social performance in eight areas that are relevant for workplaces in factories and organizations worldwide. https://sa-intl.org/programs/sa8000/ THESIS Help Center Video: Labor Rights - Manufacturing KPI: Short video tutorial on the Labor Rights - Manufacturing KPI. Use case-sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted.





Definitions	First party systematic risk assessment: A first party systematic risk assessment is conducted by the organization itself for management review and other internal purposes and may form the basis for an organization's declaration of conformity.
	Forced labor: Any task or service performed by a person against their will or under threat of negative consequence. Forced labor includes debt bondage, human trafficking, withholding of wages or identity papers, threats of violence, unreasonable restriction of movement, and exploitation of marginalized workers.
	Freedom of collective bargaining: The right to negotiate the conditions of employment as a group rather than individually without fear of repercussions.
	Internationally-recognized labor principles: Internationally-recognized labor principles include the United Nations Global Compact and International Labour Organization Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work or equivalent.
chara as fre Interr Risk can i site r Secc by ar Thirc certif	Labor rights: The universal rights of workers, regardless of race, gender, nationality, or other distinguishing characteristic. These include protection from the worst forms of child labor, forced labor, and discrimination, as well as freedom of association and collective bargaining as outlined by the United Nations Global Compact or the International Labour Organization Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work.
	Risk assessment: A systematic process to evaluate potential risks within an operation, system, or supply chain. It can include an on-site audit by a second party or third party or a country risk classification analysis that judges the site risk due to prevailing conditions, controls, or other mitigating factors.
	Second-party audit: An audit conducted by a party having an interest in the organization, such as customers, or by another entity on their behalf.
	Third-party audit: An audit conducted by external, independent auditing organizations, such as those providing certification of conformity to a standard.
	Verifiable: Having the ability to demonstrate, through a reputable assessor, the truth or accuracy of a claim.
Hotspots Addressed	10. Labor rights - Textile production





13. MICROFIBER RELEASE – MANUFACTURING		
Question How does your company address microfiber release during manufacturing?	 Response Options A. Not applicable, we only use plant-based fibers that biodegrade in water. B. We are unable to determine at this time. C. We are able to report the following: C1% of our synthetic textile supply, by mass, comes from manufacturers who monitor microfiber release. C2% of our synthetic textile supply, by mass, comes from manufacturers who utilize alternatives to wet processing. C3% of our synthetic textile supply, by mass, comes from manufacturers who have implemented practices and technologies to minimize microfiber release. 	

Calculation & Scope	Answer A if your company only works with plant-derived materials (e.g., cotton, linen) which have been proven to biodegrade in water.
	Calculate C1 as the mass of your synthetic textile supply that was sourced from manufacturers, either contracted or company owned, who monitored microfiber release during wet processing, divided by your total mass of synthetic textile supply, then multiply by 100. Monitoring may include, but is not limited to, wastewater and lint analysis.
	Calculate C2 as the mass of your synthetic textile supply that was sourced from manufacturers, either contracted or company owned, who utilized alternatives to wet processing, divided by your total mass of synthetic textile supply, then multiply by 100.
	Alternatives should replace at least one full stage of wet processing to qualify. Examples include, but are not limited to inkjet printing and plasma technologies, which replace the dyeing stage of wet processing.
	Calculate C3 as the mass of your synthetic textile supply that was sourced from manufacturers, either contracted or company owned, who have implemented practices and technologies to minimize microfiber release, divided by your total mass of synthetic textile supply, then multiply by 100.
	Practices and technologies that minimize microfiber release include, but are not limited to, lowering the melting temperature of yarn to improve tensile strength, and adding coatings to yarn to reduce fiber loss.
Definitions	Microfiber release: Small synthetic fibers less than 10 micrometers in diameter that are released into the environment via wastewater during textile manufacturing that cause a variety of impacts to humans and wildlife, in addition to persisting in rivers, streams, and oceans.
Hotspots Addressed	3. Production impacts - Synthetic materials
	13. Microfiber Release - Laundering







14. WORKER HEALTH AND SAFETY - MANUFACTURING

Question	Response Options
What was the injury and illness rate at company-owned or contract manufacturing facilities that produced your final product?	 A. We are unable to determine at this time. B. Our injury and illness rate over our last twelve-month reporting period was: B1 B2% of our product, by mass produced, is represented by the number reported above.

Calculation & Scope	This question aligns with the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Injury and Illness rate. This rate can be normalized for global applicability.
	Calculate B1 according to OSHA's injury and illness rate by multiplying the number of recordable injuries and illnesses by 200,000. Divide this number by the total employee hours worked to produce your final product. If multiple facilities manufacture the final product, the injury and illness rate will need to be adjusted using a weighted average based on each facility's percentage of total production. Include all employees at a facility that participate in the production of the final product. This includes both full-time and contracted employees.
	Calculate B2 as the mass of your final product for which you were able to obtain data, divided by the total mass of your final product, then multiply by 100.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
	THESIS General Guidance document provides guidance to calculate the weighted average. See Background Information for access to this document.
	The Incidence Rate Calculator and Comparison Tool is an online calculator that will compute your injury and illness rate. The OSHA Forms for Recording Work-Related Injuries and Illnesses provides forms and information for computing your facility injury and illness rate.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	Incidence Rate Calculator and Comparison Tool: This tool calculates the injury and illness incidence rate for employers. https://data.bls.gov/iirc/
	OSHA Forms for Recording Work-Related Injuries and Illnesses: This webpage contains information on how to record workplace injuries and illnesses and provides the worksheets needed to correctly do so. https://www.osha.gov/recordkeeping/forms
	THESIS Help Center Video: Worker Health and Safety - Manufacturing KPI: Short video tutorial on the Worker Health and Safety - Manufacturing KPI. Use case-sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted. https://vimeo.com/520108472





Background Information	Accord on Fire and Building Safety in Bangladesh: The Accord on Fire and Building Safety in Bangladesh is an agreement between brands and trade unions to improve worker health and safety. It can be a model for factory inspections, remediation, and worker participation & training. https://bangladeshaccord.org/
	How to Compute a Firm's Incidence Rate for Safety Management: This website from the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics provides in-depth guidance on computing injury and illness numbers. https://www.bls.gov/iif/osheval.htm
	SA8000® Standard: Social Accountability International (SAI) is a global non-governmental organization that aims to advance human rights at work via the SA8000® Standard. SA 8000 measures social performance in eight areas that are relevant for workplaces in factories and organizations worldwide. https://sa-intl.org/programs/sa8000/
Definitions	Company-owned or contract manufacturing facilities: Facilities responsible for manufacturing and assembly of final products, whether these facilities are internal or external to the respondent's organization.
	Worker exposure to harmful elements: Contact with potentially harmful chemical, physical, or biological elements that occurs as a result of one's job-related activities. Examples include chronic interaction with chemicals, dusts, radiation, environmental elements, allergens, noise, and vibrations.
	Worker health and safety: Worker health and safety consists of worker injury and worker exposure to harmful elements. Please see the corresponding terms.
	Worker injury: Physical damage to an individual due to a single act that causes immediate damage or repetitive acts that cause damage over time. Examples of causes of injury include repetitive motions, non-ergonomic motions, damage from use of tools and machinery, falls, and burns.
Hotspots Addressed	5. Chemical use - Textile Production
	12. Worker health and safety - Finished goods production





15. HAZARDOUS CHEMICAL DISCHARGE MANAGEMENT

Question What is your organization's approach to managing chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List in your products?	 Response Options A. Not applicable, we have a policy to not use any chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List at any of our manufacturing facilities and we verify that this is true using analytical methods. B. We ensure legal and regulatory compliance. C. In addition to (B), we have programs with goals to prioritize and continuously reduce, eliminate, or restrict the use of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List in our products using various tools and protocols to make informed substitutions of the
	 identified substances. D. In addition to (C), we publicly disclose our goals and progress concerning the reduction, elimination, or restriction of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List in our products. E. In addition to D, the following percentage of our manufacturing facilities have had a reduction in the use of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substance List: E1%.

Calculation & Scope	For C, informed substitution implies that factors such as cost and performance, technical feasibility, life cycle impacts, economic and social accountability, and potential to result in lasting change have been taken into consideration to ensure that substitutes and the final product are safer based on their health and environmental profiles.
	For D, goals should be specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound. Public disclosure of goals and progress must have occurred within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
	Examples of tools and protocols for screening chemicals and assessing alternatives include green chemistry, alternatives analysis, restricted substances lists, and other tools that are listed in the Background Information.
	To calculate E1, subtract the number of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List used this year across all manufacturing facilities where your product is cut and sewed from the number of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List used last year across all manufacturing facilities where your product was cut and sewed. If more chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List were used this year than last, enter zero.
	Calculate E1 as the number of manufacturing facilities where your product is cut and sewed that reduced the use of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List this year compared to last year divided by the total number of manufacturing facilities where your product is cut and sewed, then multiply by 100.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	American Apparel & Footwear Association (AAFA) - Restricted Substance List: The AAFA provides guidelines for restricted chemicals and substances. https://www.aafaglobal.org/AAFA/Solutions_Pages/Restricted_Substance_List
	BHive: The BHive enables the creation and management of chemical inventories, identifies chemical products that meet sustainability credentials. The BHive enhances supply chain transparency as factories, brands, and retailers can view and compare the safety of chemical products. https://www.thebhive.net/
	Detox to Zero by OEKO-TEX: This analysis and assessment tool creates transparency and provides textile and leather producers the ability to control the use of hazardous substances. The tool focuses on continuous improvement and gradual reduction of harmful substances in production processes.







https://www.oeko-tex.com/en/our-standards/detox-to-zero-by-oeko-tex

Greenlist Process: According to their website, "In 2001, SC Johnson developed the Greenlist Process to classify ingredients in order to minimize the human and environmental impacts of their products." The process is now available for license to other companies and organizations.

https://www.scjohnson.com/en/our-purpose/sustainability-report/explaining-the-sc-johnson-greenlist-program-an-excerpt-from-our-2017-sustainability-report

GreenScreen for Safer Chemicals: GreenScreen is a "Chemical Hazard Assessment" method that can be used to identify chemicals of high concern and determine safer alternatives. The tool was developed and is administered by Clean Production Action. A second tool, the GreenScreen List Translator, is a publicly available abbreviated version that screens and classifies chemicals based solely on their presence on authoritative hazard lists. https://www.greenscreenchemicals.org/

GreenSuite: GreenSuite is an environmental sustainability tool that can be customized to specific users' needs. Environmental issues throughout the supply chain are covered by this web based solution. http://greensuite360.com/index.html

NSF/GCI/ANSI 355-2011 - Greener Chemicals and Processes Information: According to this website, "The purpose of the Information Standard is to provide the chemical enterprise with a voluntary and standardized way to define and report environmental and human health hazards associated with a chemical product and its gate-to-gate manufacturing process impacts."

http://www.worldcat.org/title/nsfgciansi-355-2011-greener-chemicals-and-processes-information/oclc/772118815

PRIO: PRIO is a web-based tool developed by the Swedish government to facilitate the assessment of environmental and health risks of chemicals. https://www.kemi.se/prioguiden/english/start

Roadmap to Zero Discharge of Hazardous Chemicals (ZDHC): This plan is intended to reduce and eliminate the discharge of hazardous chemicals. https://www.roadmaptozero.com/

SAC Higg Index: The Sustainable Apparel Coalition has developed indicator-based assessment tools called the Higg Index, which evaluates the sustainable practices associated with production of apparel and footwear. https://apparelcoalition.org/the-higg-index/

Safer Choice (EPA): In order to identify scientific evidence of probable serious effects to human health and the environment, organizations should reference relevant criteria in the U.S. EPA Safer Choice Program. https://www.epa.gov/saferchoice

Sustainable Textile Solutions (STS): Sustainable Textile Solutions programs support brands, retailers, and industry partners in their efforts to achieve compliance to environmental, health, and safety standards. https://sustexsolutions.com/

THESIS Help Center Video: Priority Chemicals - Management KPI: Short video tutorial on the Priority Chemicals - Management KPI. Use case-sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted. https://vimeo.com/536528286

United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA): Exposure Assessment Tools and Models: According to their website, "The Office of Pollution Prevention and Toxics (OPPT) has developed several exposure assessment methods, databases, and predictive models to help in evaluating what happens to chemicals when they are used and released to the environment and how workers, the general public, consumers and the aquatic ecosystems may be exposed to chemicals."

https://www.epa.gov/ceam/tools-data-exposure-assessment

United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA): Sustainable Futures: According to their website, "The goal of the Sustainable Futures Initiative (SF) is to make new chemicals safer, available faster, and at lower cost. It works by giving chemical developers the same risk-screening models that EPA uses to evaluate new chemicals before they enter the market."

https://www.epa.gov/sustainable-futures







Background Information	BizNGO Chemical Alternatives Assessment Protocol: The BizNGO Chemical Alternatives Assessment Protocol is a "decision framework for substituting chemicals of concern to human health or the environment with safer alternatives." https://www.bizngo.org/alternatives-assessment/chemical-alternatives-assessment-protocol
	United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Existing Chemicals Program: According to their website, "EPA's existing chemical programs address pollution prevention, risk assessment, hazard and exposure assessment and characterization, and risk management for chemical substances in commercial use." The current chemicals management program is undergoing review and update, including how the agency identifies and prioritizes priority chemicals for review and assessment under TSCA. https://www.epa.gov/compliance/toxic-substances-control-act-tsca-compliance-monitoring#chemicals
	United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Safer Choice - Alternatives Assessments: The EPA's Safer Choice [formerly Design for the Environment (DfE)] partnership program provides guidance for informed decision-making regarding the hazards posed by different materials used in consumer goods. https://www.epa.gov/saferchoice
Hotspots Addressed	5. Chemical use - Textile Production





16. PRODUCT DESIGN

Question	Response Options
What percentage of your product, by unit volume, was designed to reduce manufacturing, use, and end-of-life impacts?	A. We are unable to determine at this time, or we do not address these impacts.
	B. We are able to report the following about our products:
	B1% of our products, by unit volume, underwent a lifecycle assessment.
	B2. % of our products, by unit volume, were designed to maximize material efficiency.
	B3% of our products, by unit volume, were designed to reduce laundering impacts.
	B4 % of our products, by unit volume, were assessed for durability as part of the design process.
	B5 % of our products, by unit volume, were designed for resource reutilization.

Calculation & Scope	Calculate B1 as the unit volume of your products that underwent a life cycle assessment, divided by the total unit volume of your product, then multiply by 100.
	A life cycle assessment should be conducted against ISO 14040:2006 (Life Cycle Assessment - Principles and Guidelines.)
	Calculate B2 as the unit volume of your products that were designed to maximize material efficiency, divided by the total unit volume of your product, then multiply by 100.
	Material efficiency may include, but is not limited to, design to reduce total amount of materials needed to cut and sew a product, design to reduce material waste during cut and sew process.
	Addressing material efficiency during the design stage may include, but is not limited to employing zero waste patternmaking to reduce material waste during the cut and sew process, and using whole garment knitting techniques to reduce the amount of yarn wasted during the knitting process.
	Calculate B3 as the unit volume of your products designed to reduce laundering impacts, divided by the total unit volume of your product, then multiply by 100.
	Laundering impacts may include, but are not limited to, energy use during laundering and microfiber release during laundering.
	Addressing laundering impacts at the design stage may include, but is not limited to choosing fabrics made from natural fibers that biodegrade, or adding care instructions to a garment's label that specify practices known to reduce energy use like cold water wash.
	Calculate B4 as the unit volume of your products that underwent a durability assessment as part of the design process, divided by the total unit volume of your product, then multiply by 100.
	Both physical and emotional durability should be considered in this assessment.
	Attributes to consider while assessing physical durability may include, but are not limited to stability/longevity of materials used, and strength/quality of cut and sew techniques.
	Attributes to consider while assessing emotional durability include a product's flexibility or changeability to adapt to changing tastes over time.
	Calculate B5 as the unit volume of your products that were designed to maximize resource utilization, divided by the total unit volume of your product, then multiply by 100.
	Resource utilization maximization may include, but is not limited to, materials that are able to be reused or recycled.







	Addressing resource utilization maximization during the design stage may include, but is not limited to choosing single fiber fabrics that can be recycled, and using simple construction methods that can be disassembled after use.
	Perform this calculation using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	THESIS Help Center Video: Product Design KPI: Short video tutorial on the Product Design KPI. Use case- sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted. https://vimeo.com/520107448
Background Information	B Corp Certification: B Corp offers certification at a company level and focuses on social and environmental performance, public transparency, and legal accountability. https://bcorporation.net/
	BlueSign: Bluesign is a third party verification and consultant service. Verification is performed for social and environmental impacts, and consulting services are available for multiple supply chain, manufacturing, and production stages. https://www.bluesign.com/en/business/services
	Cradle to Cradle Certified (TM) - Material Health: The Cradle to Cradle Products Innovation Institute, a non- profit organization, administers the Cradle to Cradle Certified [™] Product Standard, and provide guidance on chemical hazard assessments and their use for material assessments. The Cradle to Cradle [™] Material Health Assessment Methodology examines product chemical composition break down and data collection rules and guidelines, guidance and criteria for chemical profiling methods, assessment of metabolism considerations, and guidance for the evaluation of material assessments. http://www.c2ccertified.org/get-certified/product-certification
	Cradle to Cradle Product Certification™: Cradle to Cradle Product Certification™ provides a standard of performance for manufacturers regarding product sustainability and material safety. Individual product assessments are performed by independent and trained third parties and certifications are made by the Cradle to Cradle Products Innovation Institute. http://www.c2ccertified.org/product_certification
	Fairtrade International Certification: Fairtrade International provides several standards (e.g. for smallholders and workers), and a certification through FLOCERT. Fairtrade aims to improve the livelihoods of smallholders and workers amongst others via fair trade relationships. https://www.fairtrade.net/about/certification
	ISO 14040:2006: ISO 14040:2006 is the International Organization for Standardization's "Principles and Framework" document for conducting life cycle assessments. https://www.iso.org/standard/37456.html
	ISO 14044:2006: ISO 14044:2006 is the International Organization for Standardization's "Requirements and Guidelines" standard for conducting life cycle assessments. https://www.iso.org/standard/38498.html
	ISO/TC 207/SC 5: ISO/TC 207/SC 5 is the International Standardization Organization's life cycle assessment standard. https://www.iso.org/committee/54854.html
Hotspots Addressed	2. Production impacts - Wool and down
	3. Production impacts - Synthetic materials
	13. Microfiber Release - Laundering
	14. Product Disposal - Landfilling






17. RECYCLED CONTENT

Response Options
A. We are unable to determine at this time.
B. We are able to report the following for our products:
B1 is the ratio of the mass of recycled fiber to the total mass of fiber used in our final products.
B2 % of our products, by mass, is represented by the number reported above.
B3 % of our recycled material supply, for which we are able to report in response options B1-B2 is polyester.

Guidance

Calculation & Scope	Calculate B1 as the mass of fiber in your final products that can be defined as recycled content, divided by the total mass of fiber in your final products. Only include post-consumer recycled content. Exclude packaging from this calculation.
	Calculate B2 as the mass of your products for which you were able to obtain data on recycled content, divided by the total mass of your products, then multiply by 100.
	Perform these calculations using data from a 12-month period that ended within 12 months of the date you respond to this question.
	Recycled material available for textile manufacturing can vary based on fiber type. This should be considered when evaluating the ratio of recycled content based upon specific textile products.
	Calculate B3 as the mass of your recycled material supply that was assessed and met criteria for B1 and B2 that is polyester divided by the total mass of your recycled material supply, then multiply by 100.
Certifications, Standards & Tools	Cradle to Cradle Product Certification™: Cradle to Cradle Product Certification™ provides a standard of performance for manufacturers regarding product sustainability and material safety. Individual product assessments are performed by independent and trained third parties and certifications are made by the Cradle to Cradle Products Innovation Institute. http://www.c2ccertified.org/product_certification
	THESIS Help Center Video: Recycled Content KPI: Short video tutorial on the Recycled Content KPI. Use case- sensitive password 'thesis' when prompted. https://vimeo.com/531017179
Definitions	Post-consumer recycled material: "Material generated by households or by commercial, industrial, and institutional facilities in their role as end-users of the product that can no longer be used for its intended purpose. This includes returns of materials from the distribution chain." (ISO 14021:2016 - Environmental labels and declarations — Self-declared environmental claims (Type II environmental labelling))
	Pre-consumer recycled material: "Material diverted from the waste stream during the manufacturing process. Excluded is reutilization of materials such as rework, regrind or scrap generated in a process and capable of being reclaimed within the same process that generated it." (ISO 14021:2016 - Environmental labels and declarations — Self-declared environmental claims (Type II environmental labelling))
Hotspots Addressed	2. Production impacts - Wool and down
	3. Production impacts - Synthetic materials







Category Sustainability Profile

Hotspots

Hotspots are activities in a product's life cycle that have a documented environmental or social impact. TSC evaluates the quality and quantity of the scientific sources of evidence for each hotspot according to a defined decision tree before they are included in the CSP. Items marked with an asterisk (*) are *additional issues* that have not achieved the same level of evidence as a hotspot. For more information on the methodology TSC uses to identify hotspots visit: http://www.sustainabilityconsortium.org/toolkit-methodology

AGRICULTURE AND LIVESTOCK

1. **Cultivation impacts - Plant-derived materials** References Activities associated with the cultivation of plant-derived materials may create Bhat & Rather, 2012 negative social and environmental impacts. Social impacts may include child labor Chapagain, Hoekstra, Savenije, & use, forced labor, access to material and immaterial resources, fair income, and Gautam, 2006 worker health and safety. Environmental impacts may include greenhouse gas Cotton Incorporated, 2011 emissions, water use, fertilizer runoff, and pesticide exposure. Coupe, Thurman, & Zimmerman, 1998 Gulcubuk, 2010 **Related Improvement Opportunities** International Trade Centre, 2011 2. Implement precision agriculture technologies Jurewicz & Shlyapochnik, 2012 3. Implement benchmarking tools, monitoring, and management plans on-farm Kandiyoti, 2009 4. Implement integrated pest management Khabbaz, Chen, & Baillie, 2010 Page & Ritchie, 2009 **KPIs** United States Department of Labor, 2012a 2. Cellulosic material sourcing - Deforestation World Wildlife Fund, 2013 3. Plant-derived material sourcing 2. Production impacts - Wool and down References Production of wool may lead to impacts from land use change, greenhouse gas Biswas, Graham, Kelly, & John, 2010 emissions, soil erosion and degradation, and biodiversity loss. Farm animals may Chartier & Rostagno, 2006 suffer from inadequate housing, painful procedures, improper handling and du Toit, Snyman, & Malan, 2009 transportation conditions, and inhumane slaughtering methods, which can have Dwyer, 2008 adverse effects on their well-being and productivity as well as product quality. Eady, Carre, & Grant, 2012 EFSA Panel on Animal Health and **Related Improvement Opportunities** Welfare, 2010 5. Implement animal welfare programs, plans, and practices on-farm Evans, et al, 2006 6. Map the geographic origins of agricultural supply chains Evans, 1997 Ferguson, Lee, & Fisher, 2017 **KPIs** Huang, Wang, & Wu, 2007 5. Wool and down sourcing Lee & Fisher, 2007 16. Product Design Steen, Mysterud, & Austrheim, 2005 17. Recycled content Toro-Mujica, Aquilar, Vera, & Bas, 2017 Wiedemann, Yan, Hnery, & Murphy, 2016





INTERMEDIATE PRODUCTION

3.	 Production impacts - Synthetic materials Production of synthetic (polyester, nylon, etc.) and semisynthetic (rayon, viscose, etc.) materials for use in textile manufacturing may lead to impacts from energy consumption, wastewater generation, resource use, worker exposure to chemicals and other hazards, as well as risk of labor rights issues. Related Improvement Opportunities Apply a wastewater pretreatment after PET fiber production Use life cycle assessments to understand human health and environmental impacts of product life cycles Implement an environmental management system KPIs Synthetic material sourcing Microfiber release – Manufacturing Product Design Product Design Recycled content 	 References Bartolome, Imran, Cho, Al-Masry, & Kim, 2012 Bassi, Tan, & Mbi, 2012 Lithner, 2011 European Commission, 2003a European Commission, 2007c Hayes, 2011 Ho & Choi, 2012 Huijbregts et al., 2010 International Energy Agency, 2008 International Labour Organization, 2013 International Labour Organization, 2018 International Labour Organization, 1993 Kanungo & Swan, 2008 KEMA, 2012 Natural Resources Defense Council, 2011 Neelis, Worrell, & Masanet, 2008 Shen, Nieuwlaar, Worrell, & Patel, 2011 Swaminathan, 2011 Thiriez & Gutowski, 2006 Vidal, Martinez, & Garrain, 2009 Weissman, Ananthanarayanan, Gupta, & Sriram, 2010
4.	Air quality - Manufacturing* Volatile organic compounds are released during fabric cleaning with organic solvents. In the drying and curing of finishing agents, air emissions are produced from the finishing agents themselves as well as from other substances carried over from upstream processes. Related Improvement Opportunities 11. Implement a corporate policy to regulate and monitor the use of chemicals 16. Use air emission reduction techniques KPIs 10. Air quality - Manufacturing	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
5.	 Chemical use - Textile Production Dyes, dyeing accelerants, and other chemicals used in textile production can lead to adverse health effects for workers, residual contamination of products, consumer health hazards, release of harmful chemicals into the wastewater and ecosystems, and leaching from landfills upon product disposal. Related Improvement Opportunities 7. Automate preparation and dispensing of chemicals 19. Use plasma technology in dyeing and finishing 21. Waterless dyeing technologies KPIs 1. Cellulosic material sourcing – Chemical use 7. Wastewater generation - Supply Chain 9. Worker Health and Safety - Supply Chain 10. Air quality - Manufacturing 14. Worker Health and Safety - Manufacturing 15. Hazardous Chemical Discharge Management 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016





6.	 Energy consumption - Yarn spinning Energy use for yarn spinning leads to non-renewable resource depletion and to climate change from greenhouse gas emissions. Related Improvement Opportunities 12. Implement industrial energy management programs and goals 13. Invest in less energy-intensive yarn spinning technologies KPIs 6. Greenhouse gas emissions - Supply chain 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
7.	 Energy consumption - Wet processing Energy use for heating water during wet processing leads to greenhouse gas emissions, particulate emissions, and contributes to fossil fuel resource depletion. Related Improvement Opportunities 7. Automate preparation and dispensing of chemicals 12. Implement industrial energy management programs and goals 18. Use of enzymatic processes KPIs 6. Greenhouse gas emissions - Supply chain 11. Greenhouse gas emissions intensity - Manufacturing 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
8.	 Water use - Wet processing Large amounts of water are used to pretreat, dye, print, and finish textile materials, which leads to resource depletion. Delivering dyes to the yarn or fabric requires high water use. Additional water is required to remove excess dyes and chemicals in the final wash and rinse operations. Related Improvement Opportunities 17. Use low-liquor ratio dyeing machinery 20. Use real-time online monitoring systems in textile production 21. Waterless dyeing technologies KPIs 8. Water use - Supply chain 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016

MANUFACTURING AND ASSEMBLY

9. Wastewater generation - Wet processing

Wastewater from wet processing of textiles produces a significant volume of contaminated or untreated effluent from preparation agents, spin finishes, dyes, and fabric finishing treatments. When released into the environment, the effluent can cause ecosystem damage and human toxicity from eutrophication and chemical contamination.

Related Improvement Opportunities

- 11. Implement a corporate policy to regulate and monitor the use of chemicals
- 17. Use low-liquor ratio dyeing machinery
- 21. Waterless dyeing technologies

KPIs

7. Wastewater generation - Supply Chain

References

- The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016
- The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016
- The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016
- The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016
- The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016







10.	 Labor rights - Textile production Workers may face several labor rights issues in contracted and sub-contracted operations. These include unfair pay, discrimination, challenges to join unions and collectively bargain, long working hours, child and forced labor, and dangerous working conditions. Women, migrants, and other marginalized populations are at an increased risk of facing these challenges. Related Improvement Opportunities 8. Corporate policy and action plan for improving the sub-contracting process in textile manufacturing 9. Accident and disease compensation protocol KPIs 12. Labor Rights - Manufacturing 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
11.	 Energy consumption - Finished goods production Energy use for textile finished goods production leads to non-renewable resource depletion and climate change from greenhouse gas emissions. Related Improvement Opportunities 12. Implement industrial energy management programs and goals 17. Use low-liquor ratio dyeing machinery 20. Use real-time online monitoring systems in textile production KPIs 11. Greenhouse gas emissions intensity - Manufacturing 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016
12.	 Worker health and safety - Finished goods production Workers are at risk of several health and safety challenges associated with the production of finished goods. These challenges include injuries associated with working with machinery as well as injuries sustained from insufficient building safety, including fires and building collapse. Workers may also inhale airborne particulates such as fibers that can have adverse effects on their respiratory systems. Related Improvement Opportunities 10. Develop a factory fire safety improvement program 14. Provide adequate onsite medical care 15. Require appropriate use of personal protective equipment (PPE) and post informational guidelines for worker safety KPIs 14. Worker Health and Safety - Manufacturing 	 References Ahmed & Hossain, 2009 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016







👌 USE

13. Microfiber Release - Laundering

Synthetic textiles may release microfibers into marine environments as they are laundered. Microfibers and microplastic aggregate masses may pose a threat to marine ecosystems, making them inhabitable to marine flora and fauna. Microfibers and microplastic may also accumulate in digestive systems of marine animals, including those ingested by humans.

Related Improvement Opportunities

22. Use natural fibers to reduce the release of microfibers

KPIs

13. *Microfiber release – Manufacturing* **16.** *Product Design*

面 END-OF-LIFE AND DISPOSAL

14. Product Disposal - Landfilling

Chemical presence, such as dyes, thalates, and plasticizers, in textile production can leach out of landfills upon product disposal leading to ecotoxicity in surrounding ecosystems. Combustion of fossil fuels for transportation to landfills leads to greenhouse gas emissions.

Related Improvement Opportunities

25. Resource recovery - Recycling of product back into the supply chain26. Implement business models for product reuse

KPIs

16. Product Design

References

- Barrows, A., Cathey, S. E., & Petersen, C. W., 2018
- Hartline, N. L., Bruce, N. J., Karba, S. N., Ruff, E. O., Sonar, S. U., & Holden, P. A., 2016.
- Miller, R. Z., Watts, A. J., Winslow, B. O., Galloway, T. S., & Barrows, A. P. 2017
- Pirc, U., Vidmar, M., Mozer, A., & Kržan, A. 2016
- Zambrano, M. C., Pawlak, J. J., Daystar, J., Ankeny, M., Cheng, J. J., & Venditti, R. A.

References

- Birtwistle, G., & Moore, C
- Singh, U. K., Kumar, M., Chauhan, R., Jha, P. K., Ramanathan, A., & Subramanian, V.





Improvement Opportunities

Improvement opportunities are practices that address one or more environmental or social hotspots and are actionable by brand manufacturers or their suppliers. TSC evaluates the quality of the evidence supporting each improvement opportunity according to a defined decision tree before including it in the CSP. For more information on the methodology TSC uses to identify hotspots visit: http://www.sustainabilityconsortium.org/toolkit-methodology

¥	RAW MATERIAL PROCESSING	
1.	Apply a wastewater pretreatment after PET fiber production Before sending wastewater from PET production to a wastewater treatment plant, apply a wastewater pretreatment such as stripping or recycling.	ReferencesEuropean Commission, 2007c
	Related Hotspots 3. Production impacts - Synthetic materials	

٢	AGRICULTURE AND LIVESTOCK	
2.	 Implement precision agriculture technologies Precision agriculture technologies can use field data, remote sensing, and global positioning systems (GPS) to control the variable rate and precise placement of fertilizers and crop protection chemicals by farm machinery. Precision agriculture can reduce on-farm energy consumption as well as the negative environmental and human health impacts that can be associated with fertilizer and crop protection chemical application. Related Hotspots Cultivation impacts - Plant-derived materials 	 References Pieri, Evers, Landers, O'Connell, & Terry, 2002 Sustainable Agriculture Initiative Platform, 2009
3.	 Implement benchmarking tools, monitoring, and management plans on-farm Tool(s) or method(s) should be 1) accessible for review by scientists (metric and methodology are transparent) 2) science-based (peer reviewed, piloted) 3) feasible for user to implement (easily accessible, ability to use conservative default values when data is not available, cost/time implications considered) 4) developed using multi- stakeholder input 5) actionable outcomes that reduce impacts 6) relevant 7) reproducible and 8) governed to ensure periodic review. Related Hotspots 1. Cultivation impacts - Plant-derived materials 	References Better Cotton Initiative, 2010
4.	 Implement integrated pest management Integrated pest management (IPM) is defined as an ecosystem-based strategy that focuses on the long-term prevention of pests or their damage through a combination of techniques such as biological control, biopesticides, habitat manipulation, modification of cultural practices, and the use of resistant varieties. Proper cropping practices can reduce crop protection chemical and harvest aid requirements. Related Hotspots 1. Cultivation impacts - Plant-derived materials 	 References du Jardin, 2015 Kooistra, Pyburn, & Termorshuizen, 2006 Le Mire et al., 2016 University of California Agriculture & Natural Resources, 2011 World Wildlife Fund, 2013
5.	 Implement animal welfare programs, plans, and practices on-farm Implement programs, plans, and practices to improve animal welfare of livestock on-farm. This includes housing design, stocking density and disease prevention. Related Hotspots Production impacts - Wool and down 	 References European Parliament and Council Directive 98/58/EC, 1998





6.	Map the geographic origins of agricultural supply chains Knowing the geographic origins of agricultural supply chains can inform planning and policy for the sustainable management of social and environmental farm practices.	ReferencesMaloni & Brown, 2006Roth, Tsay, Pullman, & Gray, 2008
	Related Hotspots 2. Production impacts - Wool and down	

Ł	MANUFACTURING AND ASSEMBLY	
7.	 Automate preparation and dispensing of chemicals Automating the preparing and dispensing of chemicals allows for more control of the process, improved performance, reduced energy consumption, and a safer and healthier working environment. Related Hotspots 5. Chemical use - Textile Production 7. Energy consumption - Wet processing 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
8.	 Corporate policy and action plan for improving the sub-contracting process in textile manufacturing Create a corporate policy and action plan for monitoring, setting goals, and tracking progress for improving safety conditions for subcontractors. Related Hotspots 10. Labor rights - Textile production 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
9.	Accident and disease compensation protocol Companies should develop a protocol that assesses the appropriate compensation for workers and their families who are affected by occupational injuries and exposures. Related Hotspots 10. Labor rights - Textile production	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
10.	Develop a factory fire safety improvement program Sufficient and clear emergency exit signage, communicating evacuation protocol to workers, accessible and unlocked emergency exits, and safe electrical wiring at garment manufacturing facilities can lead to reduced health and safety risks from factory fires. Related Hotspots	ReferencesAkhter, Salahuddin, Iqbal, Malek, & Jahan, 2010

12. Worker health and safety - Finished goods production







11.	 Implement a corporate policy to regulate and monitor the use of chemicals Corporate policies can provide guidance for facilities by setting goals and targets related to regulating and monitoring the use of chemicals. These policies can align with broader initiatives and local regulations. Related Hotspots Air quality - Manufacturing Wastewater generation - Wet processing 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
12.	 Implement industrial energy management programs and goals Implementing energy-management programs and setting goals can optimize energy use. Examples of programs include the formation of energy teams, assigning management responsibilities to an energy director, and tracking energy use at the facility level. Goals can include energy efficiency benchmarks and energy reduction targets. Related Hotspots 6. Energy consumption - Yarn spinning 7. Energy consumption - Wet processing 11. Energy consumption - Finished goods production 	 References Greer, Egan, & Lin, 2010 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
13.	 Invest in less energy-intensive yarn spinning technologies Vortex, friction-spinning, and jet spinning machines have lower energy demand than ring and open-end rotor spinning systems. However, all spinning systems do not produce the same quality of yarn. Therefore, product specifications must also be taken into account when choosing a spinning technology. Related Hotspots 6. Energy consumption - Yarn spinning 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
14.	 Provide adequate onsite medical care Provide full-time medical care and first aid treatment to workers. It is recommended for textile facilities with a female workforce that the primary doctor and nurses be female. Related Hotspots 12. Worker health and safety - Finished goods production 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016





15.	 Require appropriate use of personal protective equipment (PPE) and post informational guidelines for worker safety Providing personal protective equipment (masks, gloves, protective clothing) and posting informational guidelines for use and worker safety may help to reduce exposure to hazardous chemicals and particulates where interventions are ineffective. Related Hotspots 12. Worker health and safety - Finished goods production 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
16.	Use air emission reduction techniques Air emission reduction techniques can be used to reduce volatile organic compounds, particulates, and toxic substances emitted to the air in the drying and curing of textiles following dyeing, printing, and finishing processes. Techniques may include installation of modern exhaust filtration units, scrubbers, and heat exchangers. Related Hotspots 4. Air quality - Manufacturing	References European Commission, 2003a
17.	 Use low-liquor ratio dyeing machinery The use of low-liquor ratio dyeing machinery reduces the consumption of energy and water in the dyeing process. Related Hotspots 8. Water use - Wet processing 9. Wastewater generation - Wet processing 11. Energy consumption - Finished goods production 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
18.	 Use of enzymatic processes Use of enzymatic processes can increase water quality following some dyeing processes, reduce energy use and emissions, and reduce water use by improving efficiencies of textile production. Related Hotspots T. Energy consumption - Wet processing 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016
19.	 Use plasma technology in dyeing and finishing Plasma technology involves the use of mixtures of partially ionized gases to cleave covalent bonds on the surfaces of textiles. Plasmas can be used in applications of pre-treatment for dyeing and printing and in the application of other finishing treatments. Plasma treatment, as compared to traditional techniques, reduces energy use, uses less water, uses no solvents, produces no effluent, and results in savings in dyestuff and finishing auxiliaries. Related Hotspots 5. Chemical use - Textile Production 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016







 Use real-time online monitoring systems in textile production Online monitoring of production processes for closed-loop controls potentially reduces energy use, water consumption, chemical use, and wastewater. Related Hotspots 8. Water use - Wet processing 11. Energy consumption - Finished goods production 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
21. Waterless dyeing technologies Technologies developed that use carbon dioxide as solvent to dye textile materials have the potential to reduce water use, energy use, and water contamination in the dyeing process.	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton
 Related Hotspots 5. Chemical use - Textile Production 8. Water use - Wet processing 9. Wastewater generation - Wet processing 	 Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016

8 USE

22.	 Use natural fibers to reduce the release of microfibers Using natural fibers instead of synthetic fibers reduces the amount of microfiber and microplastic that is released into municipal water supply during laundering. Related Hotspots 13. Microfiber Release - Laundering 	 References Barrows, A., Cathey, S. E., & Petersen, C. W., 2018 Hartline, N. L., Bruce, N. J., Karba, S. N., Ruff, E. O., Sonar, S. U., & Holden, P. A., 2016. Miller, R. Z., Watts, A. J., Winslow, B. O., Galloway, T. S., & Barrows, A. P. 2017 Pirc, U., Vidmar, M., Mozer, A., & Kržan, A.
		2016

\mathbf{D} IMPROVEMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR MULTIPLE LIFE CYCLE STAGES

 Use life cycle assessments to understand human health and environmental impacts of product life cycles Product life cycle assessments (LCAs) provide a resource for improved decision-making based on an assessment of many environmental and human health impacts associated with a product life cycle. Related Hotspots Production impacts - Synthetic materials 	 References The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Cotton Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Nylon Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Polyester Textiles), 2016 The Sustainability Consortium (Rayon Textiles), 2016
---	--





24.	 Implement an environmental management system Implement an environmental management system that follows an established standard, such as ISO 14000, to provide procedures for detecting and improving environmental and efficiency issues. Related Hotspots 3. Production impacts - Synthetic materials 	ReferencesEuropean Commission, 2003aHo & Choi, 2012
25.	Resource recovery - Recycling of product back into the supply chain Implement programs for collecting and chemically or mechanically recycling used fiber back into the supply chain at the end-of-life stage. Related Hotspots 14. Product Disposal - Landfilling	 References Hayes, 2011 Ho & Choi, 2012 Kalliala & Nousiainen, 1999 Van der Velden, Patel, & Vogtlander, 2013
26.	Implement business models for product reuse Product design and stewardship programs can extend useful life and reclaim reusable or recyclable material. Related Hotspots 14. Product Disposal - Landfilling	 References Armstrong & Lang, 2013 Cartwright et al., 2011 Waste and Resources Action Programme, 2012d Waste and Resources Action Programme, 2013a







References

A Ahmed, J.U., & Hossain, T. (2009). Industrial safety in Readymade garment sector: A developing country perspective. Administration and Management Review, 21(1), 16-31.

Akhter, S., Salahuddin, A.F.M., Iqbal, M., Malek, A.B.M.A., & Jahan, N. (2010). Health and occupational safety for female workforce of garment industries in Bangladesh. Journal of Mechanical Engineering, 41(1), 65-70.

Armstrong, C.M. & Lang, C. (2013). Sustainable product service systems: The new frontier in apparel retailing? Research Journal of Textile and Apparel, 17(1), 1-12.

B Barrows, A., Cathey, S. E., & Petersen, C. W. (2018). Marine environment microfiber contamination: Global patterns and the diversity of microparticle origins. Environmental Pollution, 237, 257-284. doi:10.31230/osf.io/xajp2

Bartolome, L., Imran, M., Cho, B. G., Al-Masry, A. A., & Kim, D. H. (2012). Recent developments in chemical recycling of PET. In Achillias, D. (Ed.) Material Recycling - Trends and Perspectives. Retrieved from http://www.intechopen.com/download/get/type/pdfs/id/32561

Bassi, A. M., Tan, Z., & Mbi, A. (2012). Estimating the impact of investing in a resource efficient, resilient global energy-intensive manufacturing industry. Technological Forecasting and Social Change, 79(1), 69-84. doi: 10.1016/j.techfore.2011.05.011

BCI - Better Cotton Initiative. Benchmarks for large farm employers (2010). http://www.bettercotton.org/files/BCSInfoPack/BCI_Farm_Assessment_Benchmarks_Large_Farm_Employer_eng_ext.pdf

Bhat, B.A.S. & Rather, T.A.G. (2012). Child Labour in the Cotton Industry of Uzbekistan: a sociological study (Doctoral dissertation).

Birtwistle, G., & Moore, C. (2007). Fashion clothing – where does it all end up? International Journal of Retail & Distribution Management, 35(3), 210-216. doi:10.1108/09590550710735068

Biswas, W. K., Graham, J., Kelly, K., & John, M. B. (2010). Global warming contributions from wheat, sheep meat and wool production in Victoria, Australia – a life cycle assessment. Journal of Cleaner Production, 18(14), 1386–1392. http://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2010.05.003

C Cartwright, J., Cheng, J., Hagan, J., Murphy, C., Stern, N., & Williams, J., (2011). Assessing the environmental impacts of industrial laundering: Life cycle assessment of polyester/cotton shirts. Bren School of Environmental Science and Management, University of California, Santa Barbara; Mission Linen Supply. Retrieved from https://ees.bren.ucsb.eu/research/documents/missionlinen_report.pdf.

Chapagain, A.K., Hoekstra, A.Y., Savenije, H.H.G., Gautam, R. (2006). The water footprint of cotton consumption: An assessment of the impact of worldwide consumption of cotton products on the water resources in the cotton producing countries. Ecological Economics, 60, 186-203. doi:10.1016/j.ecolecon.2005.11.027.

Chartier, M. P., & Rostagno, C. M. (2006). Soil Erosion Thresholds and Alternative States in Northeastern Patagonian Rangelands. Rangeland Ecology & Management, 59(6), 616–624. Retrieved from http://www.jstor.org.ezproxy1.lib.asu.edu/stable/3899894

Cotton Incorporated. (2011). Executive summary: Life cycle assessment of cotton fiber and fabric. Retrieved at: http://cottontoday.cottoninc.com/sustainability-about/Cotton-LCI-LCA-Executive-Summary/Cotton-LCI-LCA-Executive-Summary.pdf

Coupe, R., Thurman, E., & Zimmerman, L. (1998). Relation of Usage to the Occurrence of Cotton and Rice Herbicides in Three Streams of the Mississippi Delta. Environmental Science and Technology, 32(23), 3673-3680.

D Directive 98/58/EC of The European Parliament and of the Council of 20 July 1998 concerning the protection of animals kept for farming purposes. O.J. L 221, (1998). Retrieved from http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=CELEX:31998L0058:EN:HTML

du Jardin, P. (2015). Plant biostimulants: definition, concept, main categories and regulation. Scientia Horticulturae, 196, 3-14.

du Toit, G. van N., Snyman, H. A., & Malan, P. J. (2009). Physical impact of grazing by sheep on soil parameters in the Nama Karoo subshrub/grass rangeland of South Africa. Journal of Arid Environments, 73(9), 804–810. http://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jaridenv.2009.03.013

Dwyer, C. (2008). The Welfare of Sheep (Vol. 6). Dordrecht: Springer Netherlands, Dordrecht. http://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4020-8553-6

E Eady, S., Carre, A., & Grant, T. (2012). Life cycle assessment modelling of complex agricultural systems with multiple food and fibre co-products. Journal of Cleaner Production, 28, 143–149. http://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2011.10.005





EFSA Panel on Animal Health and Welfare. (2010). Scientific Opinion on the practice of harvesting (collecting) feathers from live geese for down production. EFSA Journal (Vol. 8). Wiley-Blackwell. Retrieved from https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2010.1886

Environmental and health hazards of chemicals in plastic polymers and products. (Doctoral Dissertation). Department of Plant and Environmental Sciences Faculty of Science. University of Gothenburg. Retrieved from https://gupea.ub.gu.se/handle/2077/24978.

European Commission. (2003a). Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control (IPPC) Reference Document on Best Available Techniques for the Textiles Industry. Retrieved from http://eippcb.jrc.ec.europa.eu/reference/BREF/txt_bref_0703.pdf

European Commission. (2007c). Reference document on best available techniques in the production of polymers. Retrieved from http://eippcb.jrc.ec.europa.eu/reference/BREF/pol_bref_0807.pdf.

Evans, D. M., Redpath, S. M., Elston, D. A., Evans, S. A., Mitchell, R. J., & Dennis, P. (2006). To graze or not to graze? Sheep, voles, forestry and nature conservation in the British uplands. Journal of Applied Ecology, 43(3), 499-505.

Evans, R. (1997). Soil erosion in the UK initiated by grazing animals: A need for a national survey. Applied Geography, 17(2), 127–141. http://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/S0143-6228(97)00002-7

- F Ferguson, D. M., Lee, C., & Fisher, A. (2017). Advances in sheep welfare. Oxford : Woodhead Publishing.
- G Greer, L., Keane, S. E., & Lin, Z. (2010). NRDC's ten best practices for textile mills to save money and reduct pollution. A practical guide for responsible sourcing. Clean by Design. Retrieved from www.nrdc.org/international/cleanbydesign/files/rsifullguide.pdf

Gulcubuk, B. (2010). Child labor under the worst conditions: child laborers in cotton production in Turkey. African Journal of Agricultural Research, 5(12), 1388-1393.

H Hartline, N. L., Bruce, N. J., Karba, S. N., Ruff, E. O., Sonar, S. U., & Holden, P. A. (2016). Microfiber Masses Recovered from Conventional Machine Washing of New or Aged Garments. Environmental Science & Technology, 50(21), 11532-11538. doi:10.1021/acs.est.6b03045

Hayes, L. (2011). Synthetic textile innovations: Polyester fiber-to-fiber recycling for the advancement of sustainability. AATCC Review. 37-41. Retrieved from www.zjff.net:81/files/20130710/1373446101068_7.pdf

Ho, H.P., Choi, T.M. (2012). A Five-R analysis for sustainable fashion supply chain management in Hong Kong: A case study. Journal of Fashion Marketing and Management, 16(2), 161-175. Retrieved from: http://dx.doi.org/10.1108/13612021211222815

Huang, D., Wang, K., & Wu, W. L. (2007). Dynamics of soil physical and chemical properties and vegetation succession characteristics during grassland desertification under sheep grazing in an agro-pastoral transition zone in Northern China. Journal of Arid Environments, 70(1), 120–136. http://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jaridenv.2006.12.009

Huijbregts, M. A. J., Hellweg, S., Frischknecht, R., Hendriks, H. W. M., Hungerbühler, K., & Hendriks, A. J. (2010). Cumulative energy demand as predictor for the environmental burden of commodity production. Environmental Science & Technology, (6), 2189-2196. doi:10.1021/es902870s

I International Energy Association. (2008). Worldwide trends in energy use and efficiency - Key insights from IEA indicator analysis. International Energy Association. Retrieved from http://www.iea.org/publications/freepublications/publications/publications/publications/publications/freepublications/publications/publications/freepublications/publications/freepublications/publications/freepublications/publications/publications/freepublications/publications/publications/freepublications/publications/freepublications/publications/freepublications/

International Labour Organization. (2013). Promoting decent work in the chemical industry: Innovative initiatives. Geneva. Retrieved from http://www.ilo.org/wcmsp5/groups/public/---ed_dialogue/---sector/documents/publication/wcms_226385.pdf

International Labour Organization. (2015). Sectoral Studies on Decent Work in Global Supply Chains. Geneva. Retrieved from https://www.ilo.org/wcmsp5/groups/public/---ed_dialogue/---sector/documents/publication/wcms_467295.pdf

International Labour Organization. (2018). International Framework Agreements in the food retail, garment and chemicals sectors: Lessons learned from three case studies. Geneva. Retrieved from https://www.ilo.org/wcmsp5/groups/public/---ed_dialogue/--- sector/documents/publication/wcms 631043.pdf

International Labour Organization. Convention C170 - Chemicals Convention, 1990 (No. 170), Pub. L. No. C170 (1993). Retrieved from http://www.ilo.org/dyn/normlex/en/f?p=NORMLEXPUB:12100:0::NO::P12100_ILO_CODE:C170

International Trade Centre. (2011). Women in cotton: Results of a global survey. Technical Report. Retrieved from: http://www.intracen.org/uploadedFiles/intracenorg/Content/Exporters/Sectors/Food_and_agri_business/Cotton/AssetPDF/Women%20in%20cotton %20-%209%2011%2011%20FINAL.pdf

J Jurewicz, P., & Shlyapochnik, A. (2012). From the Field: Travels of Uzbek Cotton Through the Value Chain. Responsible Sourcing Network Report. Retrieved from: http://www.sourcingnetwork.org/storage/FromTheFieldReport.pdf





K Kalliala, E.M., & Nousiainen, P. (1999). Environmental profile of cotton and polyester-cotton fabrics. AUTEX Research Journal, (1)1, 8-20. Retrieved from www.autexrj.com/cms/zalaczone_pliki/2b.pdf

Kandiyoti, D. (2009). Invisible to the world?: The dynamics of forced child labour in the cotton sector of Uzbekistan. School of Oriental and African Studies, University of London. Retrieved from: http://www.soas.ac.uk/cccac/events/cotton-sector-in-central-asia-2005/file49842.pdf

Kanungo, A., & Swan, E. (2008). All electric injection molding machines: How much energy can you save? Retrieved from http://repository.tamu.edu/bitstream/handle/1969.1/87974/ESL-IE-08-05-06.pdf

KEMA. (2012). Industrial sectors market characterization - Plastics industry. Report prepared for Southern California Edison Company. Retrieved from http://calmac.org/publications/Final_Plastics_Market_Characterization.pdf.

Khabbaz, B.G., Chen, G., & Baillie, C. (2010). Energy and greenhouse gas emissions of Australian cotton: from field to fabric. I: CIGR 2010: Sustainable Biosystems Through Engineering, 13-17 Jun 2010, Quebec City, Canada.

Kooistra, K.J., Pyburn, R., Termorshuizen, A.J. (2006). The sustainability of cotton. Consequences for man and environment (Report 223). Science Shop Wageningen University & Research Centre. ISBN: 90-6754-90-8585-000-2.

L Le Mire, G., Nguyen, M. L., Fassotte, B., du Jardin, P., Verheggen, F., Delaplace, P., & Jijakli, M. H. (2016). Implementing plant biostimulants and biocontrol strategies in the agroecological management of cultivated ecosystems. A review/Intégrer les biostimulants et les stratégies de biocontrôle dans la gestion agroécologique des écosystèmes cultivés (synthèse bibliographique). Biotechnologie, Agronomie, Société et Environnement, 20(S1), 299.

Lee, C., & Fisher, A. D. (2007). Welfare consequences of mulesing of sheep. Australian Veterinary Journal, 85(3), 89-93.

M Maloni, M. J., & Brown, M. E. (2006). Corporate social responsibility in the supply chain: an application in the food industry. Journal of business ethics, 68(1), 35-52.

Miller, R. Z., Watts, A. J., Winslow, B. O., Galloway, T. S., & Barrows, A. P. (2017). Mountains to the sea: River study of plastic and non-plastic microfiber pollution in the northeast USA. Marine Pollution Bulletin, 124(1), 245-251. doi:10.1016/j.marpolbul.2017.07.028

N Natural Resources Defense Council. (2011). Polyester is a synthetic, non-renewable fiber, with some surprising redeemable qualities. Retrieved from http://www.nrdc.org/international/cleanbydesign/files/CBD_FiberFacts_Polyester.pdf

Neelis, M., Worrell, E., & Masanet, E. (2008). Energy efficiency improvement and cost saving opportunities for the petrochemical industry. An ENERGY STAR Guide for Energy and Plant Managers (LBNL-964E). Lawrence National Laboratory. Retrieved from http://www.energystar.gov/ia/business/industry/Petrochemical_Industry.pdf

P Page, S. L. J., & Ritchie, B. (2009). A report on better management practices in cotton production in Brazil, India, Pakistan, Benin, Burkina Faso, Cameroon, Mali, & Senegal. Technical Report from Better Cotton Initiative. Retrieved from: http://www.cabi.org/projectsuploads/projectsdb/documents/1354/BMP%20FINAL%20REPORT.pdf

Pieri, C., Evers, G., Landers, J., O'Connell, P., & Terry, E. (2002, June). No-till farming for sustainable rural development. The International Bank for Reconstruction and Development.

Pirc, U., Vidmar, M., Mozer, A., & Kržan, A. (2016). Emissions of microplastic fibers from microfiber fleece during domestic washing. Environmental Science and Pollution Research, 23(21), 22206-22211. doi:10.1007/s11356-016-7703-0

- R Roth, A. V., Tsay, A. A., Pullman, M. E., & Gray, J. V. (2008). UNRAVELING THE FOOD SUPPLY CHAIN: STRATEGIC INSIGHTS FROM CHINA AND THE 2007 RECALLS*. Journal of Supply Chain Management, 44(1), 22-39.
- S SAI Platform, (2009). Principles and practices for arable and vegetable crops. Retrieved from: http://www.saiplatform.org/uploads/Library/PPsArableVegetableCrops2009-2.pdf

Shen, L., Nieuwlaar, E., Worrell, E., & Patel, M. K. (2011). Life cycle energy and GHG emissions of PET recycling: Change-oriented effects. The International Journal of Life Cycle Assessment, 16(6), 522 - 536. doi:10.1007/s11367-011-0296-4

Singh, U. K., Kumar, M., Chauhan, R., Jha, P. K., Ramanathan, A., & Subramanian, V. (2007). Assessment of the impact of landfill on groundwater quality: A case study of the Pirana site in western India. Environmental Monitoring and Assessment, 141(1-3), 309-321. doi:10.1007/s10661-007-9897-6

Steen, H., Mysterud, A., & Austrheim, G. (2005). Sheep grazing and rodent populations: evidence of negative interactions from a landscape scale experiment. Oecologia, 143(3), 357–364. http://doi.org/10.1007/s00442-004-1792-z





Swaminathan, V. (2011). Occupational health and safety in chemical industries in transitional economies. Indian Journal of Occupational and Environmental Medicine, 15(3), 85–86. http://doi.org/10.4103/0019-5278.93194

T The Sustainability Consortium. (2016). Cotton Polyester Blend Textiles CSP. Fayetteville, AR

The Sustainability Consortium. (2016). Cotton Textiles CSP. Fayetteville, AR.

The Sustainability Consortium. (2016). Nylon Textiles CSP. Fayetteville, AR.

The Sustainability Consortium. (2016). Polyester Textiles CSP. Fayetteville, AR

The Sustainability Consortium. (2016). Rayon Textiles CSP. Fayetteville, AR.

Thiriez, A., & Gutowski, T. (2006). An environmental analysis of injection molding. Proceedings of the 2006 IEEE International Symposium on Electronics and the Environment. Retrieved from

http://dx.doi.org.ezproxy1.lib.asu.edu/10.1109/ISEE.2006.1650060>10.1109/ISEE.2006.1650060.

Toro-Mujica, P., Aguilar, C., Vera, R. R., & Bas, F. (2017). Carbon footprint of sheep production systems in semi-arid zone of Chile: A simulationbased approach of productive scenarios and precipitation patterns. Agricultural Systems, 157, 22–38. http://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.agsy.2017.06.012

U United States Department of Labor. (2012). List of goods produced by child labor or forced labor. Retrieved from http://www.dol.gov/ilab/reports/pdf/2012TVPRA.pdf

University of California Agriculture & Natural Resources. (2011). Retrieved June 2012, from UC IPM Online Statewide Integrated Pest Management Program: http://www.ipm.ucdavis.edu/GENERAL/ipmdefinition.html

V Van der Velden, N.M., Patel, M.K., & Vogtlander, J.G. (2013). LCA benchmarking study on textiles made of cotton, polyester, nylon, acryl, or elastane. International Journal of Life Cycle Assessment. Retrieved from: DOI 10.1007/s11367-013-0626-9

Vidal, R., Martínez, P., & Garraín, D. (2009). Life cycle assessment of composite materials made of recycled thermoplastics combined with rice husks and cotton linters. The International Journal of Life Cycle Assessment, 14(1), 73 - 82. doi:10.1007/s11367-008-0043-7

W Waste and Resources Action Programme. (2012). Valuing our clothes: The true cost of how we design, use and dispose of clothing in the UK. Technical Report. Retrieved from: http://www.wrap.org.uk/sites/files/wrap/VoC%20FINAL%20online%202012%2007%2011.pdf

Waste and Resources Action Programme. (2013). Evaluating the financial viability and resource implications for new business models in the clothing sector. Technical Report. Retrieved from: http://www.wrap.org.uk/content/innovative-business-models-clothing

Weissman, A., Ananthanarayanan, A., Gupta, S. K., & Sriram, R. D. (2010). A systematic methodology for accurate design-stage estimation of energy consumption for injection molded parts. Proceedings of the ASME 2010 International Design Engineering Technical Conferences & Computers and Information in Engineering Conference IDETC/CIE. Retrieved from http://www.nist.gov/customcf/get_pdf.cfm?pub_id=905587

Wiedemann, S. G., Yan, M.-J., Henry, B. K., & Murphy, C. M. (2016). Resource use and greenhouse gas emissions from three wool production regions in Australia. Journal of Cleaner Production, 122, 121–132. http://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2016.02.025

World Wildlife Fund. (2013). Cleaner, Greener Cotton. WWF Freshwater Programme.

Z Zambrano, M. C., Pawlak, J. J., Daystar, J., Ankeny, M., Cheng, J. J., & Venditti, R. A. (2019, April 05). Microfibers generated from the laundering of cotton, rayon and polyester based fabrics and their aquatic biodegradation. Retrieved May 22, 2019, from https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0025326X19301614





Release Notes

*** 02.06.10, May 2021 ***

- In-text references and broken resource links (URLs) included in the KPI guidance were updated to the most recent available versions. Where no alternative resource was available, the item was substituted with a comparable resource or was removed.

The KPI Equality of Treatment for Homeworkers - Manufacturing has been deleted as part of the 2021 revision cycle due to this KPI meeting criteria for problematic scoring, answerability, or year over year tracking.

Plant-Derived Material Sourcing:

- Response Options: Previous response options quantitatively tracking plant derived material supply have been retained.

- Response Options: A response option to track the percentage of supply quantitatively reported in the KPI that is cotton has been added.
- Calculation & Scope: Text added to support the response option addition above.
- Certifications, Standards & Tools: References added to support the response option changes and additions above.

Priority chemicals - Management:

- KPI Title: Renamed to "Hazardous Chemical Discharge Management".

- KPI Question: Reworded to cover chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List.

- Response Options: The term "priority chemicals" has been replaced with "chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List"

- Response Options: A response option to track reduction in the number of chemicals on the ZDHC Manufacturing Restricted Substances List has been added.

- Calculation & Scope: Text added to support the response option changes and additions above.

- Certifications, Standards & Tools: References added to support the response option changes and additions above. Recycled content:

- Response Options: A response option for the percentage recycled material supply that is polyester has been added.

- Response Options: The existing response options addressing the mass of recycled fiber were retained.

- Calculation & Scope: Text added to support the added response options above.

- Certifications, Standards & Tools: References added to support the new response option above.

NEW KPI - "Cellulosic material sourcing - Chemical use"

NEW KPI - "Cellulosic material sourcing – Deforestation"

Synthetic material sourcing:

- Response Options: Quantitative response option added to track percentage of supply that is polyester.

NEW KPI - "Microfiber release - Manufacturing"

Wastewater generation - Supply chain:

- Certifications, Standards & Tools: References updated to support recent initiatives.

02.05.10, May 2020

-In-text references and broken resource links (URLs) included in the KPI guidance were updated to the most recent available versions. Where no alternative resource was available, the item was substituted with a comparable resource or was removed.

-Product design KPI: some linked items were not properly displaying in the guidance; these errors have been corrected and the linked items restored. In addition, the following certifications, standards, tools, and/or definitions will be added: Cradle to Cradle Certification, Bluesign standard, B Corp certification, ISO 14044:2006, ISO 14040:2006, and ISO /TC 207/SC 5.

-Equality of treatment for homeworkers - Manufacturing KPI: Due to an error in the TSC database, some linked items were not properly displaying in the guidance. These errors have been corrected and the linked items restored.

-Alignment with Higg FEM was made explicit by including specific language in guidance for the following KPIs:

- Greenhouse Gas Emissions Intensity - Supply Chain

- Wastewater Generation - Supply Chain

- Water Use Supply Chain
- Greenhouse Gas Emissions Intensity Manufacturing
- Priority Chemicals Management

02.04.10, June 2019

-Air Quality - Manufacturing guidance was updated to be more specific.

-Equality of Treatment for Homeworkers - Manufacturing KPI response option A was updated with language to verify that homeworkers are not used. -Cross-sector social KPIs were updated with new questions and response options. KPIs affected:

-Worker Health and Safety - Supply Chain

-Labor Rights - Manufacturing

-Product Design KPI was updated with new question, guidance, and response options in order to assess every stage of product's life cycle.

02.03.10, June 2018





-Product category description updated

-References in KPI guidance to the SAC Higg Index were updated to correspond to the most recent version

- Broken links referenced in the KPI guidance were corrected.

- KPI guidance language referencing CDP's Information Requests for Climate Change and Water were updated to reflect the 2018 versions.

Plant-derived material sourcing:

-New KPI addressing traceability and assessment of environmental and social impacts of farm-level activities -Supporting hotspot, improvement opportunities, and references added

Synthetic material sourcing KPI:

-New KPI addressing traceability and assessment of environmental and social impacts of polymer production facilities -Scope includes synthetics (polyester, nylon, etc.) and semisynthetics (rayon, viscose, etc.) -Supporting hotspot, improvement opportunities, and references added

Wool and down sourcing KPI:

-New KPI addressing traceability, animal welfare, and certification or audit for farm-level environmental impacts -Supporting hotspot, improvement opportunities, and references added

02.02.10, June 2017

Language referring to the "last twelve months" was removed from the question and/or response options text to avoid any confusion with the related statement in the "Calculation and Scope" of the Guidance. The following KPIs were affected: Greenhouse gas emissions – Supply chain

Greenhouse gas emissions intensity – Manufacturing

Worker health and safety – Manufacturing

Recycled Content

- Response Options: Added another response option to track the % products where the supplier is able to report the amount of recycled content. Wastewater Generation

- Response Options: Different response options were revised for tracking wastewater quality metrics with each metric being defined in a separate response option and equally weighted.

TSC's Multi-stakeholder Process

The Sustainability Consortium (TSC) is a multi-stakeholder organization comprised of leading companies, non-profit organizations, and other members that represent broad perspectives on sustainability. To build a KPI set that can be deployed widely, TSC acknowledges that members have diverse points of view. As such, the attributes, activities, KPIs, and scoring used in this KPI set represent a composite perspective of the current market and are not necessarily the views, policies, or program of any single member of TSC.

Disclaimer

Arizona State University and University of Arkansas, administrating universities of The Sustainability Consortium, are furnishing this item "as is." TSC does not provide any warranty of the item whatsoever, whether expressed, implied or statutory, including but not limited to, direct, indirect, special, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or any way connected to the use of the item, whether or not based upon warranty, contract, tort, or otherwise; whether or not injury was sustained by persons or property or otherwise; and whether or not loss was sustained from, or arose out of, the results of the item, or any services that may be provided by The Sustainability Consortium.